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INTRODUCTION

Supply/Demand Theory
Las Vegas is booming with no sign of slowing down. 3
-~ . R . STATIf)N .
The population growth continues to outpace the rest c iu“] :
of the nation. Las Vegas has created an economy RevorT

with a sustained housing market and community

development unlike anywhere in the United States.

At the same time there are substantial barriers to
entry for building new gaming projects in the local’s

gaming market.

This environment creates a great opportunity for
our company due to a “text book” supply and

demand imbalance.




Our Investment Thesis:
Execute Classic Supply/Demand Theory

Since the inception of our Company in 1976, we have
consistently focused on catering to a local market,
the first, and still the most significant of which, is the

Las Vegas local’s market.

While the Las Vegas local’s market has always been
very strong thanks to the demand generated by a
vibrant economy, substantial population growth,
investment in the community and a growing
employment base, a paradigm shift regarding
supply has taken place, culminating in the passage
by the Nevada State Legislature of Senate Bill (“SB”)
208 in 1997.
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InTRODUCTION: SuPPLY/DEMAND THEORY

SB208 significantly limits where casinos can be
built in the Las Vegas Valley. That legislation set forth
strict guidelines for development of casinos off the
Las Vegas Strip or away from Downtown Las Vegas.
SB208 also outlines very demanding criteria that
must be met in order for a parcel of property to be

gaming entitled.

We recognized the opportunity presented by SB208
and that became the catalyst for our current strategic
direction. The passage of this legislaticn led to a
classic supply/demand imbalance — much like the
ones we studied in college in our Econ 101 class.
We immediately began to examine every piece of
property that could be gaming entitled and began

to assemble the largest portfolio of gaming entitled
property in the Las Vegas metropolitan area. Today
we have five sites comprising 250 acres that can be

developed as business conditions dictate.




As this supply/demand imbalance began to unfold,
we became more convinced about the value of our
Las Vegas franchise. We also recognized the sustainable

competitive advantage that could be realized from 7
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having a leadership position in this market, as a 004

result, in late 2000 and early 2001 we sold all of
our non-Las Vegas operations and acquired three
major properties in the Las Vegas local’s market.
Since then, we have continued to develop new casinos
and acquire existing local casinos and today have
fourteen properties in the Station Casinos family:
Under classic supply/demand theory, owning

more supply in a market with growing demand and
significant barriers to entry should create substantial
value to our shareholders. We intend to continue to
aggressively expand in this market through further

development as well as acquisitions.




INTRODUCTION: SUPPLY/DEMAND THEORY

LAs VEGAS STILL LEADS NATION IN HOME VALUE GROWTH
SOURCE: LAS VEGAS REVIEW-JOURNAL, DECEMBER 11, 2004

TOP 10 HOUSING MARKETS

RANK CITY MEDTAN PRICE PERCENT CHANGE
1. LAS VEGAS $283,200 53.7
2. BRADENTON, FLA. $248,000 40.7
3. RIVERSIDE-SAN BERNARDINO, CALIF. $311,700 36.2
8 4. SAN DIEGO $578,300 32.5
5. SACRAMENTO, CALIF. $329,700 30.5
6. WEST PALM BEACH-BOCA RATON, FLA. $321,500 29.0
7. NORFOLK-VIRGINIA BEACH, VA. $182,200 27.3
8. FT. MYERS-CAPE CORAL, FLA. $194,800 26.3
9. ORANGE COUNTY, CALIF. $643,600 26.0
10. | LOS ANGELES $452,400 24.0

SoUTHERN NiEvapa INDEX OF LEADING EcoNoMIC INDICATORS

January 1990 - September 2004

SOURCE: UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA LAS VEGAS CENTER FOR BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH

January 1990
September 2004
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Today the Las Vegas local’s market is about a $2.4 billion market,
making it one of the largest in the country. By way of comparison,
the Chicago market generates about the same in gaming revenues annually.
Applying some very modest assumptions — that the population only grows at a 3%
rate and that the average gaming revenue per person only grows at 2% annually,

the Las Vegas local’s market should be a $3.2 billion market by the end of the decade.

Las VEGAS LocaL’s MARKET GAMING REVENUE

11
(in millions)
SOURCE: ESTIMATED USING NEVADA SAMING CONTROL BOARD REVENUT REPORTS AND PUBLIC COMPANY FILINGS STA,TION
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CHAPTER ONE: DEMAND DRIVERS
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The exceptional growth in Las Vegas is not a new phenomenon.
The Southern Nevada Business Activity Index demonstrates that over the last 15 years,
Clark County has enjoyed a remarkably strong economy. The Southern Nevada
Business Activity Index is published by the UNLV Center for Business and Economic
Research and uses information including gaming revenue, taxable sales receipts and

employment to give a general picture of how businesses are doing in Clark County.

SOUTHERN NEVADA BUSINESS ACTIVITY INDEX
January 1990 - September 2004

SOURCE: UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA LAS VEGAS CENTER FOR BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH

January 1990

September 2004
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Demand Driver: Population Growth
For the eighteenth year in a row, Nevada has led the country as the
fastest growing state, in large measure due to the rapid growth in Southern
Nevada. In 2004, the population in the Las Vegas area grew by 95,000
people. Roughly 5,0600-8,000 people per month move to Las Vegas due to
the availability of good jobs, the fact that there are no state, personal or corporate
income taxes, the great year round climate, the relatively low cost of living
compared to surrounding states and a variety of entertainment options which
are especially appealing to seniors. Clark County has been the fastest growing
county in the country for some time, and now North Las Vegas is the second
fastest growing city in the country growing 235% over the last three years. The city
of Henderson is now the third fastest growing city in the country with 23%
growth over the last three years and recently surpassed Reno to become the

second largest city in Nevada.

Crark CouNnTY POPULATION
(in thousands)

SOURCE: UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA LAS VEGAS CEWTER FOR BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH
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CHAPTER ONE: DEMAND DRIVERS

Demand Driver: Job Creation
One of the significant strengths in the Las Vegas local’'s market is the
availability of jobs. Over the last year over 40,000 new jobs were created in
Las Vegas across a broad range of industries. Contrary to public perception,
gaming and entertainment account for only about 18% of all jobs in Las Vegas.
During the past year we saw significant increases in construction, transportation
and other service industry jobs. Having a wide variety of industries to chose
8 from makes Las Vegas an even more attractive destination for people seeking
employment. As a result of the general economic climate, the unemployment rate
in Las Vegas was only 3.5% at the end of the year, substantially lower than the
national average. With the continued migration of people to the sunbel,

Nevada and, in particular, Las Vegas, has been a beneficiary of the economic

impact of that migration through increased jobs.

TotaL EMPLOYMENT LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN AREA
(in thousands)

SOURCE: NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT., TRAINING AND REKABILITATION
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CuAPTER ONE: DEMAND DRIVERS

While gaming was not in the top ten industries in terms of growth
rate for 2004, there will be a substantial number of new gaming-related jobs
created in 2005 and 2006 with the opening of Wynn Las Vegas, the Palazzo,

Encore and the new tower at Caesars Palace.

NEevaDA LaBor FORCE
(in thousands)
SOURCE: NEVAOA DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPHMENT

20

JECEMBER 2004 CECEMBER 2003 % CHANGE
TOTAL LABOR FORCE 1.187.9 1,144.7 3.8%
UNEMPLOYMENT 45.9 51.8 -11.4%
TOTAL EMPLOYMENT 1,141.9 1.092.9 4.5%
MINING 9.2 8.8 4.5%
CONSTRUCTION 116.1 103.9 11.7%
SERVICE INBUSTRIES 997.4 8958.9 £.1%
HOTELS, GAMING 206.3 i 204.4 0.9%
GOVERNMENT 145.2 139.7 | 3.9%

LAs VEcas LABoR Force
(in thousands)
SOURCE: NEVADA DEPARTMENT QOF EMPLOYMENT, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

DECEMBER 2004 1 ODECEMBER 2003 % CHANGE
TOTAL LABOR FORCE 955.4 ; 912.3 4.7%
UNEMPLOYMENT 33.8 41.4 i —18.4%
TOTAL EMPLOYMENT 921.5 870.9 l 5.8%
MINING 1.3 1.3 [ 0.0%
CONSTRUCTION 93.4 84.1 ] 11.1%
SERVICE INDUSTRIES 763.2 729.4 i 4.6%
HOTELS, GAMING 168.1 165.4 1.0%
GOVERNMENT 97.5 ? 93.2 4.6%
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Demand Driver: Economic Investment in Las Vegas

Las Vegas is currenty undergoing another wave of substantial investment

in many sectors of the community. Residential building is at an all-time high,

commercial development is strong as is infrastructure investment in terms of new

roads, schools and utilities. In 2004 there were roughly 30,000 new homes sold,

breaking the previous year’s record performance. The sale of previously owned

homes also set new records in 2004.

ANNUAL NEw HoME RECORDED SALES
SOURCE: HOME BUILDERS RESLARCH INC.
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CHAPTER ONE: DEMAND DRIVERS
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While the commercial, residential and infrastructure development
in Las Vegas continues at a very robust pace, development on the Strip will
take the Las Vegas economy to a new level. Wynn LV, Palazzo, Encore and
the new Caesars tower alone account for over 33 billion in projects currently
under construction on the Strip. Given the continued strength of Las Vegas as
the premier entertainment destination in the world, we expect that there will be
much more development on the Strip. MGM Mirage has announced its intention
to develop a new City Center, which will include residential, retail, commercial
and other urban development. We expect other residential high rises to be
developed along both sides of the 1-15 corridor. We also anticipate more
redevelopment of existing properties so that they can remain competitive with
the new products offered on the Strip. All this investment and its economic
multiplier effect ensures a development pipeline that will continue to fuel our

economy for the foreseeable future.
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Dear Fellow Shareholders:

ON BEHALF OF THE ENTIRE StaTioN CAsiNoOs, INC.
MANAGEMENT TEAM, WE THANK YOU FOR THE
CONFIDENCE AND SUPPORT YOU HAVE SHOWN OUR
COMPANY THIS LAST YEAR. WITH YOUR SUPPORT,
WE ARE ABLE TO REPORT THAT 2004 WAS ANOTHER
EXCEPTIONAL YEAR, NOT ONLY OPERATIONALLY,
BUT ALSO STRATEGICALLY, AS WE PREPARE FOR
FUTURE YEARS OF CONTINUED GROWTH AND EXECUTION
OF OUR GOAL OF OUTPERFORMANCE

RELATIVE TO OUR PEERS IN THE INDUSTRY'.

>> >
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

LAas VEgas LocAL’s MARKET GAMING REVENUE
(in millions)
SOURCE: ESTIMATED USING NEVADA GAMING CONTROL BOARD REVENUE REPORTS AND PUBLIC COMPANY FILINGS
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2004: Another Year with Record Results

In the later half of 2003 our Las Vegas local's market franchise began to see
a trend of increasing year over year same store revenue growth after experiencing
relatively flat same store revenues post September 11th. As we entered 2004, we
began to see double digit same store revenue grovvth. That trend continued
throughout the year primarily due to the success of our Jumbo suite of products,
the growing population and the continued exceptional supply/demand characteristics

of the market. As a result, we saw record revenues, EBITDA and earnings per share

in each quarter of 2004 compared to the prior vear. 75
STaTioN
. 3 Casinos, Inc.
The Local’s Market Continues to Outperform o4

The Las Vegas economy continues to be the envy of virtually every other REPORT

community in the country. The population grew by 95,000 people in 2004, or
roughly 6%, continuing a trend of 10 people per hour moving to Nevada - most of
whom are moving to Las Vegas. The employment environment was also exceptional
as over 40,000 new jobs were created year over vear and by the end of the year our
unemployvment rate declined to 3.5%. The State of Nevada experienced its lowest
unemployvment rate since 1978 largely due to job growth in Las Vegas. The exceptional
economy combined with substantially less regulatory, tax and political risk vis-a-vis
other jurisdictions and the significant barriers to entry into the market provide our

shareholders with the best risk/ reward relationship in the gaming industry.

Operating Leverage In the Business

Thanks to the continuing success of our Juimbo suite of products and
our other marketing efforts which resulted in a 14% increase in revenues in the
Las Vegas local’s market in 2004, we were ablc 10 expand operating margins to
38% for the year. As we have shared with you in the past, there is substantial
operating leverage on incremental revenues due to the fixed cost nature of our
business. Our focus in 2005 will be to continuc to generate incremental revenues

through the use of innovative marketing programs and promotions. One of
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the keys to our success has historically been how we use various marketing
techniques to drive revenues. Given the strength of the local economy and the
continued lack of increased capacity in this market through all of 2005, we think

we can increase same store revenues by 6%—-10% in 200s.

Strategic Financings in 2004 Create a Platform for Future Growth

One of the most strategic initlatives we made in 2004 was the complete
refinancing of our balance sheet. During the year we completed $2.25 billion in
financings which position our company for future growth. We now have virtually
no debt due until December of 2009, our weighted average cost of capital is only
5.9% at December 31, 2004 and 78% of our debt is fixed rate. These financings,
along with our substantial projected free cash flow, will allow us to continue to
develop properties which historically have generated returns on investment in the
high teens to mid-twenty percent range. We were pleased that the public markets
had the confidence to also revise our covenant package to allow for significantly
more flexibility than we had previously. We believe we have a 10-15 year growth
story in the Las Vegas market alone and now have the free cash flow and the

balance sheet to enable us to execute our growth plans,

Acquisitions as a Growth Vehicle

During 2004 we acquired two small properties in the Las Vegas local’s
market. We continue to believe that there are other properties in Las Vegas and
elsewhere that fit our investment return requirements. Our primary focus for
acquisitions will continue to be in Las Vegas as we believe this is by far the best
overall market in the industry. However, we are interested in other local markets
and will continue to evaluate opportunities in jurisdictions that we consider to
have the best regulatory, political and tax climate. We are not interested in getting
bigger for the sake of size, but rather, we believe that our expertise in operating in
local markets makes us well qualified to export that expertise to jurisdictions that

meet our risk/reward proposition.




Land Holdings are another Key to Our Success

Over the last several years we have strategically assembled the largest
portfolio of gaming entitled land in Las Vegas. We now have five parcels totaling
over 250 acres which we can develop into gaming properties in the future.
Our land held for development has substantial “hidden” value to shareholders.
We believe these sites have value to our sharcholders that is significantly in excess
of cost, particularly given the limited number of sites available as a result of
Senate Bill 208. We expect to develop these sites over the next several years. After
Red Rock Resort Spa and Casino opens, we expect to begin the development of a
new casino/entertainment complex on the land currently occupied by the
Wild Wild West. The timing of the development of the other sites is dependent on
the population growth patterns surrounding the locations as well as the strength
of the local market economy. Due to the strength of both of these parameters, we
are leaning toward more development sooner than we have previously

thought in the past.

Native American Gaming — Using our Expertise in Other Markets

The United Auburn Indian Community had a very successful year at
their Thunder Valley Casino just outside of Sacramento, California. We appreciate
the opportunity (o assist them with their development and operation of the
property and look forward to continued success at Thunder Valley. The other
four management contracts with the Match-E-Be-Nash-She-Wish Band of the
Pottawatomi Indians, the Mechoopda Indian ‘Tribe of Chico Rancheria the
Federated Indians of the Graton Rancheria and the North Fork Mono Rancheria
Tribe are in various stages of development. We look forward to developing
entertainment complexes for these tribes and managing the properties for them.
We continue to believe that managing casinos for Native Americans will be an
important growth opportunity for our company in the future. We thank these
tribes for their selection of Station Casinos as the manager of their properties and
look forward to continuing to work closely with the tribes toward developing and

operating the best gaming and entertainment facilities in their respective markets.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

PrOJECTED CLARK COUNTY POPULATION
(in thousands)

SOURCE: UNIVERSITY OF NEVADA LAS VEGAS CENTER FOR
BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC RESEARCH
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PROJECTED LocaL’s MARKET GAMING REVENUE
(in thousands)
ASSUMES 2% ANNUAL INCREASES THROUGH 2010




Looking Forward to Continued Growth

Our plans for 2005 are in place. We sce 2005 as another strong year for
the company with 6% -10% same-store revenuc growth and again experiencing
double digit EBITDA and EPS growth. The master planned expansions at Green
Valley Ranch, Santa Fe Station and Sunset Station will all be in operation this year.
As we start to think about 2006, we are very excited about the opening of Red Rock
Resort which will open in the first quarter of 2006. In addition in 2006, we plan to

have a full year of operations from our previously mentioned master-planned

expansions and continued same store growth in the Las Vegas local’s market, 79

along with roughly $10 million in management fecs. With these assumptions we . Smlo;:
ASINDS, INC.

should again see strong double digit growth in EBITDA and EPS. After 2006, we have oos

the five parcels in Las Vegas to develop, four Native American Gaming contracts to REPORT

bring to fruition, further master-planned expansions, as well as, acquisitions to drive

further growth. This is one of the strongest growth stories in the gaming industry.

Thanks for Another Great Year

On behalf of the entire management team at Station Casinos, we
congratulate our team members in helping Station Casinos to be recognized
by Fortune magazine as one of the Top 100 Best Companies to Work For.
This is a great honor and reflects our efforts to create a great place for our
team members to come to work. We also want to thank our nearly 11,000
team members for their untiring efforts to provide excellent service to our
guests. Together we look forward to executing our strategy of focusing on
operations, developing existing opportunities, creating new ones and
maintaining an appropriate capital structure that will allow us to continue
to enhance shareholder value.

\5%{6\%@ Y AS

Frank J. Fertitta III Lorenzo J. Fertitta
Chairman and CEQ Vice Chairman and President
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Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

Net revenues $ 986,742 $ 858,089 $ 792,865 | $ 836,857 [ $ 990,060
Operating income $ 257,055 $ 141,071 § 145,910 | § 138,335 % 241,194
Operating income and earnings from joint ventures $ 283,878 $ 161,67510 $ 157,203 | & 140,839 ¢ ¢ 242,812
Net income applicable to common stock $ 66,350 | § 44,343 % 17,932 % 19,369 % 93,505
Diluted earnings per common share $ 1.00 | % 0.72] 3 0.30 | $ 0.321% 1.48
Weighted average common shares outstanding 66,264 61,850 60,730 60,037 63,116
BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Capital expenditures $ 305,156 $ 179,655 $ 20,138 | $ 450,088 | % 358,763
Total assets $2,045,584 $1,745,972 | 31,598,347 ) $1,656,122 | $ 1,440,428
Long-term debt $1,338,213 $1,168.957 | $1.165,722 | $1,237.090 | $ 989,625
Stockholders’™ eqguity $ 488,921 $ 339,939 | § 270,678} § 248,904 % 288,887
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FiNANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with “Selected Consolidated Financial Data”

and the financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table highlights the results of our operations (dollars in thousands):

Year ended Year ended Year ended

December 31, Percent December 31, Percent December 31,

2004 change 2003 change 2002

Net revenues — total $ 986,742 15.0 % $ 858,089 82 % $ 792,865
Maijor Las Vegas Operations (a) 868,248 11.2 % 781,061 1.6 % 768,813
Managerment fees (b) 84,618 812 % 46,711 862.5 % 4,853
Other Operations and Corporate (¢} 33,876 11.7 % 30,317 57.9 % 19,199
Operating income (loss) — total $ 257,055 822 % $ 141,071 (3.3% $ 145,910
Major Las Vegas Operations (a) 232,678 36.4 % 170,566 (7.9% 185,170
Management fees (b) 84,618 812 % 46,711 862.5% 4,853
Other Operations and Corporate (c) (60,241) 209 % (76,208} (72.8)% (44,113)

Cash flows provided by (used in)

Operating activities $ 261,596 332 % $ 196,451 478 % $ 132,808
Investing activities (337,114) (82.9)% (184,317) (205.2)% (60,393)
Financing activities 81,663 987.5 % 9,201) 88.4 % (79,283)

(&} Includes the wholly owned properties of Palace Station, Boulder Station, Texas Station, Sunset Station, Santa Fe Station,
Fiesta Rancho and Fiesta Henderson.

(o) Includes management fees from Thunder Valley (since June 9, 2003), Green Valley Ranch Station and Barley’s.

(c) Includes the wholly owned properties of Wild Wild West, Wildfire (since January 27, 2003), Magic Star (since August 2, 2004),
Gold Rush (since August 2, 2004), and Corporate and Development expense.

Net Revenues

Consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased 15.0% to $386.7 million as compared
to $858.1 miillion for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in consolidated net revenues was due to an
$81.9 million increase in casino revenues and an increase in management fees from Thunder Valley, which includes
a full year of operations. Net revenues increased primarily due to a strong Las Vegas local economy, continued
population and employment growth in the Las Vegas valley, no new competition in the local’s market, as well as
the continued success of our Jumbo brand products, including Jumbo Jackpot, Jumbo Jackpot, which we
introduced in Aprit 2003, is an exclusive progressive slot jackpot that allows customers using a Boarding Pass or
Amigo Club card the opportunity to win between $50,000 and $150,000 just for playing slot machines.




Consolidated net revenues for the year ended December 31 ,”2003 increased 8.2% to $858.1 million as compared
to $792.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, Thie increase in consolidated net revenues was
primarily due to management and development fees from Thunder Valley, which opened on June 9, 2003.
Overall population growth in the Las Vegas valley, as well as.the introduction of Jumbo Jackpot in April 2003,
were also contributing factors to the increase in consolidated net revenues.

Operating Income/Operating Margin ¢

In analyzing year-to-year comparative operating resutts, management takes into consideration the effect of certain
charges and credits on operating income. The following table identifies these charges and credits and the
resulting operating income and operating margins, excluding such charges and credits {dollars in thousands):

Years ended December 31,
i 2004 2003 2002
Operating income . $ 257,055 $ 141,071 $ 145810
Operating margin 26.1% 16.4% 18.4%
‘ 83
Certain charges/credits: 4
STATION
Thunder Valiey development fee ; - {4,595) - CasiNos, INC.
Impairment loss ! - 18,868 8,791 A:‘;?;;L
Litigation settlernent - 38,000 - REPOKT
- Preapening expenses i 848 - -
Operating income, excluding certain charges/credits : $ 257,903 $ 193,344 § 154,701
Operating margin, excluding certain charges/credits : 26.1% 22.5% 19.6%

Consolidated operating income, excluding certain charges/credits, increased 33.4% in the year ended
December 31,2004 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase is primarily due to
increased ¢onsolidated net revenues noted above. There is significant operating leverage on incrementat revenue
due to a significant amount of fixed costs. As a result, our consolidated operating margin, excluding certain
charges/credits, improved 3.6 percentage points in the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2003,

Consolidated operating income, excluding certain charges/credits, increased 25.0% in the year ended
December 31, 2003 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2002, This increase is primarily due to
management fees from Thunder Valley, which opened on ijne 9, 2003. As a result, our consolidated margin,
excluding centain charges/credits, improved 3.0 percentage‘: points in the year ended December 31, 2003 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2002.
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The following table highlights our various sources of revenues and expenses as compared to prior years
(dollars in thousands):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, Percent December 31, Percent December 31,
2004 change 2003 change 2002
Casino revenues $ 730584 126% $ 648,664 1.7% $ 638,113
Casino expenses 273,816 32 % 265,203 26 % 258,383
Margin 62.5% 59.1% 59.5%
Food and beverage revenues $ 140,332 50% $ 133,676 0.1% $ 133,811
Food and beverage expenses 100,548 145 % 87,783 115 % 78,738
Margin 28.4% 34.3% 41.2%
Room revenues $ 57,057 131% $ 50,460 39% $ 48579
Room expenses 21,053 7.5 % 19,580 3.1% 19,000
Margin 63.1% 61.2% 80.9%
Other revenues $ 42,008 8.6) % $ 45,943 126 % 8§ 40,790
Other expenses 16,820 88 % 15,452 (5.1)% 16,276
Management fees $ 84,618 812% $ 46,711 8625% $ 4,853
Selling, genera! and administrative expenses $ 172,923 70% $ 161,643 04% $ 161,038
Percent of net revenues 17.5% 18.8% 20.3%
Corporate expense $ 47,189 42.8 % $ 33,039 3.4 % $ 31,946
Percent of net revenues 4.8% 3.9% 4.0%
Earnings from joint ventures $ 26,524 28.7 % $ 20,604 824% $ 11,298

Casino

Casino revenues increased 12.6% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2003, due to the same factors affecting our consolidating net revenues noted above. Casino
expenses increased 3.2% over the same period due primarily to an increase in gaming taxes as a result of the
higher casino revenue. There is also significant operating leverage on incremental gaming revenue due to & significant
amount of fixed costs in the casino department and, as a result, the casino profit margin increased by 3.4
percentage points for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003.

Casino revenues increased 1.7% for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2002, due to the same factors affecting the consolidated net revenues. The casino profit margin
decreased slightly by 0.4 percentage points for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2002, as casino expenses increased 2.6% over the same periods due primarily to marketing
expenses related to the introduction of Jumbo Jackpot.




Food and Beverage ;

Food and beverage revenues increased 5.0% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year
ended Décember 31, 2003, due to selected menu price increaseé, as well as restaurant enhancements at Santa
Fe Station with the addition of a Mexican restaurant in May 2003,‘5‘the expansion of the ¢offee shop in December
2003 and upgrade of the steakhouse in March 2004, in addition to an aggressive marketing program promoting
the buffet. The average guest check increased 4.5% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the
year.ended December 31, 2003, Food covers remained virtually Q‘nchanged with a 0.4% increase for the year
endad December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. Food and beverage expenses
increased 14.5% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2003,
resulting in a decrease of the food and beverage net operating mérgin of 5.9 percentage points for the same
period. The increase in food and beverage expense is related to increased payroll and related costs primarily
due to rising benefit costs and increases in costs of selected food items.

Food and beverage revenues were essentially flat for the year end%ed December 31, 2003 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2002. Food covers increased 7.3% while the average guest check decreased 8.0%
for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the year énded December 31, 2002. The decrease in
the average guest check was a result of selected menu price reductions, primarily in the buffet, which were
implemented as part of.a new marketing program. The fower prices, as well as an aggressive marketing campaign
promoting the buffet, drove additional volume resulting in an increése in food covers. As a result of the additional
volume; food and beverage expenses increased over the sams period. Food and beverage costs also increased
due to increases in selected food cost items and marketing costs:bromoting the buffet.

Room

Room revenues.increased 13.1% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2003. Room occupancy increased to 96% from 94%, while the average daily room rate increased
to $56 from $50 for the same period, as a result of newly remodeled rooms at Santa Fe Station and Sunset Station
and a contiriued increase in consumer demand for rooms in Las Vegas during 2004,

Room revenues increased 3.9% for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2002. Room occupancy increased to 94% from 91%, while the average dally room rate remained
constant'at $50 for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compéred to the year ended December 31, 2002
The increase in occupancy percentage was primarily due to a general increase in consumer demand for rooms
in Las Vegas during 2003.

Other |

Other revenues primarily include income from the gift shops, bowling, entertainment, leased cutlets and arcades.
Other revenues decreased 8.6% for the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2003. The decrease in other revenues is primarily due to development fees received from
Thunder Valley for approximately $4.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2003,

Other revenues increased 12.6% for the year ended December 31 ,12003 as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2002 primarily due to development fees received fro‘;m Thunder Valley of approximately $4.6 million,
net of certain expenses and approximately $1.5 million in rental incéme from an industrial business center, located
adjacent to Wild Wild West, which we purchased in the second quarter of 2003. The increase in other revenues
was partially offset by insurance proceeds of approximately $1.6 million that we received in the first quarter of 2002.
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Management Fees

We manage Thunder Valiey on behalf of the United Auburn Indian Community ("UAIC") and receive a management
fee equal to 24% of net income {(as defined in the management agresment). In addition, we are the managing
partner for both Green Valley Ranch Station and Barley's and receive a management fee equal to 2% of revenues
and approximately 5% of Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”) from
Green Valley Ranch Station and 10% of EBITDA from Barley’s. For the year ended December 31, 2004,
management fees increased to approximately $84.6 million as compared to $46.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. The increase is due to management fees from Thunder Valley, which includes a full year of
operations, as well as improved results at Green Valley Ranch Station.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, management fees increased to approximately $46.7 million as compared
to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, The increase is directly related to the opening of
Thunder Valley on June 8, 2003, as well as increased earnings at Green Valley Ranch Station.

Selling, General and Administrative ("SG&A”)

SG&A as a percentage of net revenues decreased to 17.5% in the year ended December 31, 2004 as compared
to 18.8% in the year ended December 31, 2003. A large portion of these costs are fixed and, as a result, as
revenues increased the percentage of SG&A to net revenues decreased. SG&A expenses increased by 7.0%

to $172.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $161.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2003. The increase is attributable to a $8.3 million increase in payroll and related expenses, primarily related to
benefits, a $1.1 million increase in accounting fees related to the new corporate governance rules mandated by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the net settlement of certain litigation and the payment of a fine and
investigative costs related to violations of Nevada Gaming Commission Regulation 6A of $0.8 mitlion.

SG8A as a percentage of net revenues decreased to 18.8% in the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to
20.3% in the year ended December 31, 2002. A large portion of these costs are fixed and, as a result, as revenues
declined the percentage of SG&A to net revenues increased. SG&A expenses increased slightly by 0.4% to

$161.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $161.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Corporate Expense

Corporate expenses increased to approximately $47.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 as
compared to approximately $33.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase is primarily
due to increased investment in corporate infrastructure to handle projected growth and a change in incentive
compensation from a stock option based program to a program which includes cash and restricted stock.

In addition, employer payroll taxes on stock option exercises increased $2.8 million as compared to prior year.
As a result, corporate expense as a percentage of net revenues increased to 4.8% in the year ended
December 31, 2004 as compared to 3.9% in the year ended December 31, 2003.

Corporate expense as a percentage of net revenues decreased slightly to 3.9% in the year ended December 31,
2003 as compared to 4.0% in the year ended December 31, 2002. Corporate expenses increased to
approximately $33.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to approximately $31.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002. The increase is primarily due to additional employer taxes on stock
option exercises in 2003 of approximately $1.1 million.

Development Expense
During the fast half of 2003, we increased our development resources in an effort to identify potential gaming
opportunities, with an emphasis on expanding our management of Native American casinos and other




-development opportunities. Development expense includes costs to develop new gaming opportunities, which
include payroll, trave! and legal expenses.. Development expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004 and
2003 were $10.7 million and $4.3 million, respactively. A!so included in development expense for 2004 is a

- $2.0 million non-reimbursable milestone payment related to the Gun Lake project in Michigan. During 2003,
$2.0 million of costs related to the Graton Rancheria préj’ect were expensed after achieving certain milestones
on the project and are also not reimbursable (see “Futuré Development”).

Depreciation and Amortization :

Depreciation and amortization increased 17.3% to apprbximately $86.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004 as compared to $73.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was due primarily to
the addition of new ticket-in, ticket-out slot machines at““a majority of the Major Las Vegas properties and the
addition of a new slot system at Fiesta Rancho and Fiesta Henderson, as well as the addition of new restaurants
at Santa Fe Station and Fiesta Henderson during 2003.+

Depreqiation and amortization increased slightly by 0‘5% to approximately $73.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 as compared to $72.8 million for tﬁg year ended December 31, 2002, This increase was due
primariiy to capital spent in 2003 and the addition of new restaurants at Santa Fe Station and Fiesta Henderson
during 2003, which was partially offset by a portion of the original equipment at Texas Station and Sunset Station

having been fully depreciated during 2002. :

Preopening Expenses ,
. Precpening expenses for the year ended December 31,2004 were approximately $0.8 million, which include
costs incurred prior to the opening of Red Rock (see “Future Development™).

- Impairment Loss ‘
We recorded an impairment loss of approximately $1 89 million and $8.8 million in the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, to adjust the carrying value of our goodwill and other assets to their
estimated fair value. The $18.9 million impairment loss in:2003 related to the write-off of approximately $17.5 million
in goodwill at Fiesta Rancho in accordance with SFAS Né. 142 as a result of reduced growth assumptions
(see Change in Accounting Principle). The remaining $1.4 million impairment loss in 2003 was primarily related
t0 the write-off of our investrment in a new slot product development, The impairment of this asset was based
upon our decision to no longer pursue the development of certain slot products. As a result, all of the
development costs that we had incurred were written off, as they were deemed to have no value.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, approximately $3.9 million of the impairment loss related to the
write-down of certain assets related to our investments“ in an Internet, intra-state gaming platform and related

‘ technology. In May 2002, the Nevada Gaming Commissibn communicated that it had general concerns regarding

. the security and reliability of Internet gaming platforms. The impairment of these assets was based upon our
decision to no longer pursue Nevada-based Internet gaming activities as a result of the uncertainty of regulatory
approval of these types of activities. As a result, all of the'hardware, software and internal development costs that
we had incurred were written off in 2002, as they were deemed to have no value. In addition, approximately
$4.9 million of the impairment loss was related to our option to invest in an Intarnet wagering business.
In February 2002, we announced that we intended to burchase a 50% interest in Kerzner Interactive Limited
{formerly SunOnline Limited) (“Kerzner interactive”), a Wholly owned subsidiary of Kerzner International Limited
fformerly Sun International Hotels Limited) (“Kerzner”). Kerzner Interactive was to be the exclusive vehicle for both
Kerzner and us to pursue the Internet wagering businef,s In July 2002, we converted our agreement to
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acquire a 50% interest in Kerzner interactive into an option to do so, and paid $4.5 million for such option.
Kerzner decided to discontinue Kerzner Interactive, as it targeted Internet wagering only from jurisdictions that
permitted online gaming. As these jurisdictions became more restrictive in their acceptance of Internet gaming,
the market size was reduced and competition intensified, resulting in a substantial decrease in the probability of
achieving profitability in the short-to-medium term. As a resutt, we have written off the option payment and other
costs refated to this investment in 2002.

Litigation Settlement

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we recorded a $38.0 million litigation settlement as we entered into
an agreement on February 9, 2004, to settle a lawsuit brought in December 2000 by Fitzgeralds Sugar Creek,
Inc., the City of Sugar Creek, Missouri and Phillip Griffith which was paid on February 24, 2004. The lawsuit
centered on allegations of improper conduct by our former Missouri legal counsel, Michae! Lazaroff.

Earnings From Joint Ventures

We own a 50% interest in Green Valley Ranch Station and Barley's, and a 6.7% interest in the Palms Casino
Resort. We recorded our share of the earnings from these joint ventures of $26.5 million, $20.6 million and
$11.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in earnings
from joint ventures is primarily related to improved results at Green Valley Ranch Station.

Interest Expense

Interest expense, net of capitalized interest, decreased 17.2% to $76.9 million in the year ended December 31,
2004 as compared to $92.9 miflion in the year ended December 31, 2003. Gross interest expense decreased
approximately $12.5 million due to a decrease in our weighted average cost of debt to 6.1% from 7.9% for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, while our long-term debt increasad by approximately
$183.3 million over the same period. The decrease in gross interest expense is the result of replacing virtually all
of our fixed rate debt with lower cost and longer term debt in the first quarter of 2004, as well as, entering into new
interest rate swaps in 2004. Capitalized interest increased approximately $3.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2004 primarily due to interest capitalized for the construction of Red Rock (see “Future Development”).

Interest expense, net of capitalized interest, decreased 4.0% to $32.9 miflion in the year ended December 31,
2003 as compared to $96.8 millicn in the year ended December 31, 2002. Gross interest expense decreased
approximately $2.4 million due to a decrease in our weighted average cost of debt to 7.9% from 8.1% for the years
ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Capitalized interest increased approximately $1.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 primarily due to interest capitalized for the construction of Red Rock.

Interest and Other Expense from Joint Ventures

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, we recorded $4.5 million, $7.2 million and

$6.3 million, respectively, in interest and other expense related to our unconsolidated joint ventures. The decrease
in interest and other expense from joint ventures during the year ended December 31, 2004 is primarity due to
the Company's 50% share of capitalized interest recorded at Green Valley Ranch Station of approximately

$1.5 million. The increase in interest and other expense from joint ventures during the year ended December 31,
2003 is due to our 50% share of a loss on early retirement of debt of approximately $0.8 million related to the
write-off of debt issuance costs at Green Valley Ranch Station.




Interest Income
Dunng the year ended December 31, 2003, we recorded $4.8: miion in interest incame on our advances to the
UAIC for development of Thunder Valley.

Loss.on Early Retirement of Debt ;
During the first quarter of 2004, we refinanced substantially iall of our senicr and senior subordinated notes.
In connection with the refinancing, we completed tender offers and cansent solicitations for approximately
$940.6 million of our senior and senior subordinated notes putstanding. As a result, we recorded a loss on
éarly retirement of debt of approximately $93.3 million duriné the year ended December 31, 2004 to reflect
the write-off of the unamortized loan costs, unamortized discount, call premium, tender fee and consent

. bayments which were partially offset by the fair value of thgzinterest rate swaps that were tied directly to
the redeemed senior-and senior subordinated notes (see “Description of Certain Indebtedness and Capital
Stock - Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes™). ‘

During the year ended December 31, 2002, we recorded a loss on early retirement of debt of approximately
$5.8 million, of which approximately $1.4 million relates to the write-off of the unamortized loan costs on our
previous revolving facility. The remaining $4.4 million relatesto the redemption of our $150 million 9%:% senior

subordinated notes on October 18, 2002. We recorded a charge of approximately $10.1 million to reflect the 89
write-off of the Unamortized debt discount, unamortized loan costs and the premium to redeem our $150 million STATION
9%:% senior subordinated notes, which was partially offset py approximately $5.7 million from the adjusted basis C“ﬁﬁi’}m‘
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of the debt as a result of the fair value hedge termination thét was tied directly to our $150 million 934% senior
subordinated notes. i
Change in Accounting Principle ;

The FASR issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, in June 2001. SFAS No. 142 changed
the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method tp an impairment-only approach. Amortization of
goodwill, including goodwill recorded in past business combinations, ceased upcn the adoption of SFAS No. 142.
We implemented SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002 and 1Qéted for impairment in accordance with the provisions
of SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2002. As a result of.an independent third party appraisal, we recorded an
impairment foss of $13.3 million, net of the applicable tax(?beneﬂt, during 2002 related to Fiesta Rancho, which
is shown as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting brincip\e in our consolidated statements of operations.

L1QuipITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The following liquidity and capital resources discussion contains certain forward-looking statements with respect
to our business, financial condition, resuits of operationsil dispositions, acquisitions, expansion projects and our
subsidiaries, which involve risks and uncertainties that cannot be predicted or quantified, and consequently,
actual resuits may differ materially from those expressed; or implied herein. Such risks and uncertainties inciude,
but are not fimited to, financial market risks, the ability to maintain existing management, integration of
acquisitions, competition within the gaming industry, the cyclical nature of the hotel business and gaming
‘business, economic conditions, regulatory matters and litigation and other risks described in our filings with
the Sechrities and Exchange Commission. (n addition,f,&:onstruction projects such as Red Rock and the
expansions at Santa Fe Station and Sunset Station entail significant risks, including shortages of materials or
skilled fabor, unforeseen regulatory problems, work stoppages, weather interference, floods and unanticipated
cost in¢creases. The anticipated costs and construction periods are based on budigets, conceptual design
documents and construction schedule estimates. Ther_é can be no assurance that the budgeted costs or
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construction period will be met. All forward-looking statements are based on our current expectations and
projections about future events.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we generated cash flows from operating activities of $261.6 million.
In addition, we received approximately $55.0 million from the exercise of stock cptions and approximately
$28.1 million from the sale of tand, property and equipment, At December 31, 2004, we had total available
borrowings of $1.0 billion under the Revolving Facility, which is reduced by borrowings of $61.5 million and
various letters of credit totaling approximately $11.5 million, leaving approximately $937.0 million outstanding
as of Decermnber 31, 2004. We had $68.4 miliion in cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2004.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, total capital expenditures were $308.2 million, of which approximately
$80.9 miliion was related to the development of Red Rock (see “Future Development”), approximatefy $54.1 mitfion
was for the accelerated replacement of stot machines 1o take advantage of ticket-in, ticket-out technology,
approximately $35.8 million was related 1o the expansion at Santa Fe Station, approximately $19.8 milion was
for the purchase and enhancements of Gold Rush and Magic Star which we acquired on August 2, 2004,
approximately $12.0 million was for the purchase of fand, approximately $9.6 million was related to the
construction of the ice skating arena at Fiesta Rancho, approximately $3.5 million was for the bowling center

at Sunset Station, approxirmately $30.1 million was for maintenance capital expenditures and approximatety
$53.4 million was for various other capital and project expenditures. In addition to capital expenditures, we
purchased land held for development for approximately $76.9 miflion, we paid approximately $22.3 million in
reimbursable advances for our Native American development projects {see “Future Development”) and we paid
approximatety $44.3 million in common stock dividends.

Qur primary cash requirements for 2005 are expected to include (i) approximately $425 million for the development
and construction of Red Rock, (i) approximately $56 million for the payment of common stock dividends,

(iit) approximately $40 million for maintenance capital expenditures, (iv) approximately $35.5 million for the
redemption of the remaining 8%/:% senior notes and 97/s% senior subordinated notes, (v) approximately

$72.5 million to purchase the land related to Wild Wild West, {vi) approximately $16.2 milion for the completion
of the expansion at Santa Fe Station, (vil) approximately $17.5 million to complete the bowling center at
Sunset Station, {(viil) payments related to our existing and other potential Native American projects, (ix) principal
and interest payments on indebtedness, (x) other strategic land purchases throughout the Las Vegas area

and (x1} opportunistic repurchases of our common stock.

We believe that cash flows from operations, available borrowings under the Revolving Facility and existing cash
balances will be adequate to satisfy our anticipated uses of capital during 2005. However, we are continually
evaluating our financing needs. If more attractive financing alternatives or expansion, development or acquisition
opportunities become available to us, we may amend cur financing plans assuming such financing would be
permitted under our existing debt agreements (see “Description of Certain Indebtedness and Capital Stock”)
and other applicable agreements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2004, we have certain off-balance sheet arrangements that affect our financial condition, liquidity
and results of operations, which include a completion guaranty related to the expansion project at Green Valley Ranch
Station {see “Green Valley Ranch Station Financing”) and interest rate swaps with a combined national amount of
$250.0 million (see “Description of Certain indebtedness and Capital Stock — Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes”).



The following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commitments {amounts in thousands):

Contractual obligations

. Other Total
; Long-term Operating long-term contractual
debt™ leases™ obligations®  cash obligations

Payments due by year :
2005 v § 94815 8§ 11,189 $ 93822 § 199,936
2006 76,357 9,058 14,979 100,394
2007 81,928 8,848 0,994 100,870
2008 ) 76,748 8,855 3.425 89,028
2009 K 127,832 8,841 438 137,111
Thereafter ) 1,621,218 449,719 - 2,070,937
Total i $2078898 § 495620 $ 122,758  § 2,698,276

(a) Includes interest related to interest rate swaps estimated based on the notional amount and net interest spread as of
Decamber 31, 2004. Interest related to the Revolver is estimated based on the outstanding balance and interest rate as
«of December 31, 2004. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

(b) SeeNote10to the Consolidated Financial Statements in fhis Annual Report.

(c) ‘Other long-term obligations are comprised of employmem contracts, slot conversion purchases and the purchase of land
related to Wild wild West,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Red Rock :

In April 2004, we commenced construction of Red Rock Resort Spa and Casino (“Red Rock”) located on Charleston
Boutevard at the Interstate 215/Charleston »nterchange in the Summerlin master-planned community in Las Vegas,
Nevada. The initial phase of the property is expected to be completed near the end of the first guarter of 2008.

We have also announced plans to accelerate the construction of a phase Il expansion. Construction on phase |l
of Red Rock is expected to begin in the latter part of 2‘005 and is expected to be completed by the end of 2008.
The total project will now include over 2,800 slot machines, over 850 hotel rooms, 94,000 square feet of meeting
and convention space, a 35,000 square-foot spa, nine'full service restaurants, a 16-screen movie theater complex,
a night club and private pool club to be operated by Mi@night Qil Company, both indoor and outdoor entertainment
venues and parking for aimost 8,500 vehicles. As a result of an increase in amenities, an upgrade in the quality of
finishes throughout the project, general increases in co}wstruction cost and addition of the phase Il expansion, the
total cost of Red Rock is expected to be approxmately $800 million, of which approximately $151.3 million has
been'spent as of December 31, 2004.

Santa Fe Station Expansion

In 2003, we began a $52 milion expansion at Santa Fe Station. The expansion includes more than 20,000 square
feet of additional casino space, 350 slot machines, a new 16-screen movie theater complex, an upgrade of the
property’s bowling center, a new entertainment venue and bar, a new Kid's Quest facility and other amenities as
well as removal of the ice arena. The additional slots, gpgrade of the bowling center and new entertainment venue

91

STATTON
CasINos, INc.
2004
ANNUAL
REPORT




92

FINaANCIAL INFORMATION

were completed in December 2004. We believe the remaining items will be completed in the first quarter of 2005
with the exception of the movie theater complex, which will be completed in April 2005. Approximately
$35.8 million has been spent on the expansion as of December 31, 2004.

Sunset Station Expansion

We are currently expanding Sunset Station to add a bowling center. The cost of the expansion is expected to
be approximately $27 million, of which approximately $9.5 million has been spent as of December 31, 2004.
We believe that the expansion will be completed in April 2005,

Fiesta Rancho Expansion

We completed a 31,000 square-foot expansion project at Fiesta Rancho in September 2004, which added a
new ice arena to the property, complete with concession area, pro shop, locker rooms and private social rooms.
The cost of the expansion was approximately $9.6 mifiion.

Green Valley Ranch Station Expansion

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we began a $125 million expansion at Green Valley Ranch Station. The expansion
includes 296 hotel rooms, 25,500 square feet of additional mesting space and an expanded spa facility.
Construction of the hotel rooms and additional meeting space were completed in December 2004. Construction
of the spa facility is expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2005. In connection with the expansion,
Green Valley Ranch Station purchased the lease from the spa operator during 2004. Green Valley Ranch Station
also terminated the lease of a restaurant at the property and paid the tenant an agreed upon sum during 2004.
As a result, we have recorded a reduction in earnings from joint ventures in the year ended December 31, 2004
of approximately $3.6 million, which represents our 50% share of the total loss.

The Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria

We have entered into Development and Management Agreements with the Federated Indians of the Graton
Rancheria (the “FIGR”), a federally recognized Native American tribe. Pursuant to those agreements, we will
assist the FIGR in developing and operating a gaming and entertainment project to be located in Sonoma
County, California. The FIGR selected us to assist it in designing, developing and financing the project and, upon
opening we will manage the facility on behalf of the FIGR. The Management Agreement has a term of seven years
from the opening of the facility and we will receive a management fee equal to 22% of the facility's net income.
We will also receive a development fee equal to 2% of the cost of the project upon the opening of the facility.

In August 2003, we entered into an option to purchase 360 acres of land just west of the Rohnert Park city limits
in Sonome County, California. The proposed site of the project is bordered by Stony Point Road, Wilfred Avenue
and Rohnert Park Expressway, approximately one-half mile from Highway 101 and approximately 43 miles from
downtown San Francisco. In October 2003, the FIGR entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with the

City of Rohnert Park. Development of the gaming and entertainment project is subject to certain governmental and
regulatory approvals, including, but not limited to, negotiating a gaming compact with the State of California, the
United States Department of the Interior (“DO!”) accepting the land inte trust on behalf of the FIGR and approval

of the Management Agreement by the National Indian Gaming Commission (“NIGC"). Prior to obtaining thrid-party
financing, we will contribute significant financial support to the project. As of December 31, 2004, we had advanced
approximately $22.4 million toward the development of this project, primarily to perform due diligence and secure
real estate for the FIGR project, which is included in other assets, net on our consolidated balance sheets.

Funds advanced by us are expected to be repaid from the proceeds of the project financing or from the FIGR's
gaming revenues. In addition, we have agreed to pay approximately $11.3 million of payments upon achieving




certain milestones, which will not be reimbursed. As of Deo?mber 31, 2004, approximately $2.0 million of these
payments had been made and were expensed in davelopment expense as incurred. The timing of this type of
project is difficult to predict and is dependent updn the receipt of the necessary governmental and regulatory
approvals. There can be no assurances when or if these app‘rovals will be obtained.

Gun Lake Tribe ‘

On November 183, 2003, we agreed to purchase a 50% interest in MPM Enterprises, LLC, a Michigan limited fiability
corhpany ("MPM”). Concurrently with our agreement to purchase that interest, MPM and the Match-E-Be-Nash-
 She-Wish Band of Pottawatomi Indians, a federally recognized Native American tribe commonly referred to as

the Gun Lake Tribe (“Gun Lake"), entered into amended Development and Management Agreements, pursuant to
which MPM will assist Gun Lake in developing and operating a gaming and entertainment project to be located in
Allegan County, Michigan. We have agreed 1o pay $8.0 minior-ﬁ for our 50% interest in MPM, which is payable upon
achieving certain milestones and is not reimbursable. As of Décember 31, 2004, approximately $2.0 million of these
payments had been made and were expensed in deve!opmeﬁt expense as incurred. An additional $12.0 million

in total may be paid by us in years six and seven of the amended Management Agreement, subject to certain
contingencies. Under the terms of the amended Development Agreement, we have agreed to arrange financing for
the ongoing development costs and construction of the projeét. As of December 31, 2004, we had advanced
approximately $20.2 million toward the development of this pfoject, primarily to secure real estate for the project,
and is included in other assets, net on our consolidated balance sheets. Funds advanced by us are expected

to be repaid from the proceeds of the project financing or from Gun Lake’s gaming revenues. The amended
Management Agreement has a term of seven years from the Qpening of the facility and provides for a management
fee of 30% of the project’s net income to be paid to MPM. Pursuant to the terms of the MPM Operating Agreement,
our portion of the management fee is 50% of the first $24 millign of management fees earned, 83% of the next

324 million of management fees and 93% of any management’fees in excess of $48 mittion.

The proposed project will be located on approximately 145 aéres on Highway 131 near 129th Avenue,
approximately 25 miles north of Kalamazoo, Michigan. As cur‘r,entiy contemplated, the project will include up to
2,500 slot machines, 75 table games, a buffet and specialty restaurants. Construction of the project includes the
conversion of an existing 192,000 square-foot building into thé casino and entertainment facility. Development of
the gaming and entertainment project and operation of Class if gaming is subject to certain governmental and
regulatory approvals, including, but not timited to, the signing pf a gaming compact by the Governor of the

State of Michigan, the DO! accepting the land into trust on behalf of Gun Lake and approval of the Management
Agreement by the NIGC. On February 27, 2004, the DOl issued a Finding Of No Significant Impact with respect
to the proposed project. Prior to obtaining third-party financing, we will contribute significant financial support to the
project. The timing of this type of project is difficult to predict and is dependent upon the receipt of the necessary
governmental and regulatory approvals. There can be no assurances when or if these approvals will be obtained.

Mechoopda, Indian Tribe ‘

We have entered into Development and Management Agreements with the Mechocpda Indian Tribe of Chico
Rancheria, California (the "MITCR"), a federally recognized Native American tribe. Pursuant to those agreements,

we will assist the MITCR in developing and operating a gaming and entertainment facility to be located on
approximately 650 acres in Butte County, California, at the interié.ection of State Route 149 and Highway 99,
approximately 10 miles southeast of Chico, California and 80 miles north of Sacramento, California. Under the
terms of the Development Agreement, we have agreed to arrange the financing for the ongoing development costs
and construction of the facility. Funds advanced by us are expected to be repaid from the proceeds of the facility
financing or from the MITCR's gaming revenues. As of Decembér 31, 2004, we had advanced approximately

|
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$5.8 million toward the development of this project, primarily to secure real estate for future development, which is
included in other assets, net on our consolidated balance sheets. In addition, we have agreed to pay approximately
$2.2 million of payments upon achigving certain milestones, which will not be reimbursed. As of December 31,
2004, $50,000 of these payments had been made and were expensed in development expense as incurred. The
Management Agreement has a term of seven years from the opening of the facility and provides for a management
fee of 24% of the facility’s net income. As currently contemplated, the facility will include approximately 700 siot
machings, 12 table games and dining and entertainment amenities. Development of the facility is subject to certain
governmental and regulatory approvals, including but not fimited to, negotiating a gaming compact with the State
of California, the DOI accepting land into trust on behalf of the MITCR and approval of the Management Agreement
by the NIGC. Prior to obtaining third-party financing, we will contribute significant financial support to the project.
The timing of this type of project is difficult to predict and is dependent upon the receipt of the necessary
governmental and regulatory approvals. There can be no assurances when or if these approvals will be abtained.

North Fork Rancheria of Mono Indian Tribe

We have entered into Development and Management Agreements with the North Fork Rancheria of Mono Indians
(the “Mono"), a federally recognized Native American tribe located near Fresno, California. Pursuant to those
agreements, we will assist the Mono in developing and operating a gaming and entertainment facility to be
located in Madera County, California. We have secured for the benefit of the Mono two parcels of land located
on Highway 99 north of the city of Madera. Under the terms of the Development Agreement, we have agreed to
arrange the financing for the ongoing development costs and construction of the facility. Funds advanced by us
are expected to be repaid from the proceeds of the project financing or from the Mono’s gaming revenues.

As of December 31, 2004, we had advanced approximately $1.5 million toward the development of this project,
primarily to secure real estate for future development, which is included in other assets, net on our consolidated
balance shests. In addition, we have agreed to pay approximately $1.3 million of payments upon achisving
certain milestones, which will not be reimbursed. As of December 31, 2004, none of these payments had been
made. The Management Agreement has a term of seven years from the opening of the facility and provides for
a management fee of 24% of the facility's net income. As currently contemplated, the facility will include
approximately 2,000 slot machines, B0 table games, dining, hotel and entertainment amenities. Development of
the gaming and entertainment project is subject to certain governmental and regufatory approvals, including, but
not limited to, negotiating a gaming compact with the State of California, the DOl accepting the land into trust
on behalf of the Mono and approval of the Management Agreement by the NIGC. Prior to obtaining third-party
financing, we will contribute significant financial support 1o the project. The timing of this type of project is difficult to
predict and is dependent upon the receipt of the nacessary governmentat and regutatory approvals. There can be
no assurances when or if these approvals will be obtained.

Land Acquisition

We have acquired certain parcels of land in the Las Vegas valley and near Sacramento, California as part of future
development activities. Our decision whether to proceed with any new gaming or development opportunity is
dependent upon future economic and regulatory factors, the availability of financing and competitive and strategic
considerations. As many of these considerations are beyond our control, no assurances can be made that we
will be able to secure additional, acceptable financing in order to proceed with any particular project.

As of December 31, 2004, we had $167.7 million of land held for devetopment that consists primarily of

five sites that are owned or leased, which comprise 198 acres in the Las Vegas valley and 188 acres in the
Sacramento area near Thunder Valley. The Durango site, located at the intersection of Durango Read and the
Southern Beltway/interstate 215 in the southwest quadrant of Las Vegas, consists of 67 acres. We also own




. & 48-acre gaming-entitied parcel in southwest Las Vegas at the intersection of Flamingo Road and Interstate
215. During the year ended December 31, 2004, we pﬁrchased approximately 54 acres of land in a gaming
enterprise district-on the southern end of Las Vegas Boulevard at Cactus Avenue for approximately $33.9 million.
In addi{ion, we lease and have an option to purchase 2.5 acres adjacent to this site. On October 1, 2004, we
purchased approximately 26 acres of real property and'improvements formerly known as the Castaways Hotel
Casino and Bowling Center (the “Castaways”) in Las Vegas, Nevada, for $33.75 million. The Castaways closed
‘ on January 26, 2004, shortly after its former owners filed for bankruptcy, We are currently evaluating the potential
uses of the property, but do not believe it is competitive and do not intend to operate the facility in its current state.
We have also acquired or are under contract to acquire épproximately 58 acres of land on which Wild Wild West
is located and the surrounding area of which, approximately 27 acres have been acquired as of December 31,
2004, We have exercised our option to purchase the 19¥acre parcel of leased land on which Wild Wild West is
Jocated. Pursuant to the lease, the purchase will occur i July 2005 at a purchase price of approximately
$36 million. No amounts related to this purchase option ihave’been recorded on the Company's consolidated
balance sheets. We currently lease this land for approxirﬁately $2.9 million per year. We have also agreed to
‘purchase an additional 12 acres of land and are expected to close on these transactions in the first guarter of 2005.
95
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We are subject to extensive regulation by the Nevada géming authorities and will be subject to regulation, which
may or may not be similar to that in Nevada, by any othér jurisdiction in which we may conduct gaming activities
in the future, including the NIGC and tribal gaming agency of the UAIC. In June 2004, the UAIC successfully
negotiated a new Tribal-State Gaming Compact (“Amended Compact”) with the State of California which has

-received approval by the DOI. The Amended Compact allows an unlimited number of slot machines at Thunder
Valley end extends the term an additional 10 years to 2030. The Amended Compact aiso includes a revenue
Sharing agreement with the State of California. Thunder Valley has added approximately 800 slot machines

‘and as a result, the UAIC will pay approximately $33.8 rﬁillion annually to the State of California commencing in
January 2005 and additional fees ranging from $11,000 to $13,200 per machine for any slot machines added
above the 1,906 that were originally in operation at Thunder Valley prior to the Amended Compact.

The gaming industry represents a significant source of tax revenue, particularly to the State of Nevada and

its counties and municipalities. From time to time, various‘state and federal legislators and officials have
proposed changes in tax law, or in the administration of sl{;ch law, affecting the gaming industry. Nevada
Legislature is currently in session and there has been no mention of significant tax proposals which would

affect the gaming industry. . ‘

We believe that our recorded tax balances are adequate. However, it is not possible to determine with certainty the
likelihood of possible changes in tax law or in the administration of such law, regulations or compact provisions.
Such changes, if adopted, could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. We recently settled and
finalized the Internal Revenue Service audits up through anﬁ including the years ended December 31, 2002.
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Cash Transaction Reporting Violations

In April 2003, we became aware of violations of certain gaming regulations regarding the reporting of certain cash
transactions. We self-reported these violations to the Nevada State Gaming Control Board. On September 24,
2004, the Nevada Gaming Commission approved the settlement agreement in which we paid approximately
$2.4 million in fines and investigative costs to the State of Nevada. We have hired additional staff at each
property and have increased the level of internal audit review to prevent this type of violation in the future.

DEescriPTION OF CERTAIN INDEBTEDNESS AND CAPITAL STOCK

Revolving Facility

in December 2004, we increased our availability under our revelving credit facility {the “Revolving Facility”}

to $1.0 billion and extended the maturity by two years to December 2009. The Revolving Facility contains no
principal amortization. The Borrowers are the major operating subsidiaries and the Revolving Facility is secured
by substantially afl of our assets. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility bear interest at a margin above the
Alternate Base Rate or the Eurodollar Rate (each as defined in the Revolving Facility), as selected by us.

The margin above such rates, and the fee on the unfunded portions of the Revolving Facility, will vary quarterty
based on our combined consolidated ratio of debt to Adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the Revolving Facility).
As of December 31, 2004, the Borrowers' margin above the Eurcdollar Rate on borrowings under the Revolving
Facility was 1.38%. The maximum margin for Eurodoilar Rate borrowings is 2.13%. The maximum margin for
Alternate Base Rate borrowings is 0.88%. As of December 31, 2004, the fee for the unfunded portion of the
Revolving Facility was 0.25%.

The Revolving Facility contains certain financial and other covenants. These include a maximum funded debt to
Adjusted EBITDA ratio for the Borrowers combined of 2.50 to 1.00 for each quarter and a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio for the preceding four quarters for the Borrowers combined of 1.50 to 1.00 for each guarter.

As of December 31, 2004, the Borrowers’ funded debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio was 0.21 to 1.00 and the fixed
charge coverage ratio was 2.31 to 1.00. In addition, the Revolving Facility has financial and other covenants,
which require that the maximum consolidated funded debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio can be no more than

5.50 to 1.00 through December 31, 2005, which reduces 10 5.25 to 1.00 on March 31, 2006 through
December 31, 20086, t0 5.00 to 1.00 on March 31, 2007 through December 31, 2007, 10 4.75 10 1.00 on
March 31, 2008 through December 31, 2008 and to 4.50 to 1.00 on March 31, 2009. Other covenants limit
prepayments of indebtedness or rent {including subordinated debt other than re-financings meeting certain
criteria), limitations on asset dispositions, limitations on dividends, limitations on indebtedness, limitations on
investments and limitations on capital expenditures. As of December 31, 2004, our consolidated funded debt
to Adjusted EBITDA ratio was 3.58 to 1.00. We have pledged the stock of all of our major subsidiaries.

Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes

During the first quarter of 2004, we refinanced substantially all of our senior and senior subordinated notes.

We issued $1.25 biflion in new senior and senior subordinated notes which consists of $450.0 million 6% senior
notes due in April 2012, $450.0 million 6'/,% senior subordinated notes due in February 2014 and $350.0 million
6 /5% senior subordinated notes due in March 2016, The proceeds from these offerings were used to redeem or
repurchase the $199.9 miflion 87/5% senior subordinated notes due in December 2008, to repurchase $357.6 million
of the 97/s% senicr subordinated notes due in July 2010, to repurchase $383.1 million of the 8%% senior notes
due in February 2008 and to reduce amounts outstanding under the Revolving Facility. As a result of these
redemptions, we recorded a loss on early retirement of debt of approximately $93.3 million in the year ended
December 31, 2004 to reflect the write-off of the unamortized loan costs, unamortized discount, call premium,




tender fee and consent payments which were partially offset by the fair value of the interest rate swaps that were
tied directly to the redeemed senior and senior subordinated notes.

On February 15, 2005, we redeemed the remaining $16.9 mlihon of outstanding 8%/:% senior notes due 2008.
As a result of the redemption, we will record a loss on early retlrement of debt of approximately $0.7 million in
the first quarter of 2005 to reflect the write-off of the unamontlzed loan costs and call premium.

The indentures (the “Indentures”) governing our senior subordinated notes (the “Notes”) contain certain customary
financial and other covenants, which fimit our and our subsidiaries’ ability to incur additional debt. At December 31,
2004, our Consolidated Coverage Ratio (as defined in the Indentures) was 4.07 to 1.00. The Indentures provide
that we may not incur additional indebtedness, other than spéciﬂed types of indebtedness, unless the Consolidated
Coverage Ratio is at least 2.00 to 1.00. In the event our Consohdated Coverage Ratio is below 2.00 to 1.00,

the covenant limits our abi ility to incur additional mdeb\edness for borrowings under the Revolving Facility not to
exceed the greater of $200 million or 1.5 times Operating Cash Flow (as defined) for the four most recent quarters,
plus 815 million. The Indentures also give the holders of the Notes the right to require us to purchase the Notes

at 101% of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued mterest thereon upon a Change of Control and Rating
Declme {each as defined in the indentures) of the Company. ln addition, the indenture governing the Senior Notes
contains a limitation on liens we can incur.

We have entered into various interest rate swaps with membérs of our bank group to manage interest expense.
As of December 31, 2004, we have interest rate swaps with é combined notional amount of $250.0 million that
are tied directly to our 8'/2% senior subordinated notes and our 6% senior notes. The interest rate swaps

convert a portion of our fixed-rate debt to a floating-rate based upon three and six-month LIBOR rates.

At December 31, 2004, we paid a weighted average rate based on LIBOR, which approximates 3.75% and
received a weighted average rate of 6.33%. The interest rate ‘swaps terminate in April 2012 and February 2014.
The net effect of the interest rate swaps resulted in a reductioj;n in interest expense of $7.3 million, $3.6 million
and-$10.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The interest rate swaps we entered into gqualify for the “shorteut” method allowed under SFAS No. 133,
*Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (and as amended by SFAS No. 138), which
allows for an assumption of no ineffectiveness. As such, there is no income statement impact from changes
in the fair value of the hedging instruments. Instead, the fairvalue of the instrument is recorded as an asset
or liability on our balance sheet with an offsetting adjustmeht to the carrying value of the related debt.

In accordance with SFAS No. 133, we recorded a liability of!$2,2 million and an asset of $3.9 million as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respeclively, representing the fair value of the interest rate swaps and a
_corresponding decrease and increase in long-term debt, as:these interest rate swaps are considered highly
effective under the criteria established by SFAS No. 133.

In March 2004, we terminated an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $50.0 million, which was due
to terminate in 2008. The interest rate swap was terminated at its market value and, as a result, we received
approximately $3.6 million, which is included in the calculation of the net loss on the early retirement of debt as
the interest rate swap was tied directly to the redemption of the $400.0 million 8%/e% senior notes.

In December 2002, we terminated an interest rate swap with'a notional amount of $100 million, which was due
to terminate in 2010. The interest rate swap was terminated at its market value and, as a result, we received
approxnmately $9.5 million. This interest rate swap was tied d[rectly to the $375 million 97/:% senior subordinated
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notes. Approximately $357.6 million of the 97/¢% senior subordinated notes were redeemed in the first quarter of
2004 and, as a result, approximately $7.6 million of the remaining value of this fair value hedge termination was
included in the calculation of the net loss on the early retirement of debt.

On Qctober 18, 2002, we redeemed our $150 million 9%.% senior subordinated notes. The redemption was
funded with proceeds from the Revolving Facility. We recorded a charge of approximately $10.1 million during the
year ended December 31, 2002, to reflect the write-off of the unamortized debt discount, unamortized loan costs
and the premium to redeem the $150 million 9%.% senior subordinated notes. This charge was partially offset

by approximately $5.7 million from the adjusted basis of the debt as a result of the fair vaiue hedge termination
that was tied directly to the $150 million 9%/4% senior subordinated notes, as discussed below. In addition, we
recorded a loss on early retirement of debt of approximately $1.4 million in 2002 to reflect the write-off of the
unamortized loan costs on the previous revolving facility.

In September 2002, we terminated an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $150 million, which was due
o terminate in 2007. The interest rate swap was terminated at its market value and, as a result, we received
approximately $5.8 million. This interest rate swap was tied directly to the $180 milion 9%/.% senior subordinated
notes. The mark-to-market adjustment was amortized as a reduction of interest expense over the original
contract life of the interest rate swap. When the $150 million 8%/:% senior subordinated notes were redeemed on
October 18, 2002, the adjusted basis of the debt as a result of the fair value hedge termination of approximately
$5.7 million was included in the calculation of the net loss on the early retirement of the related debt.

Green Valley Ranch Station Financing

Green Valley Ranch Station is owned by a 50/50 joint venture between us and GCR Gaming. In December 2004,
Green Valley Ranch Station entered into a new $250 million Second Amended and Restated Loan Agreement
(the “Green Valley Facility”), which refinanced the existing $250 miflion revolving credit facility and term loan.
The Green Valley Facility extends the maturity of the revolving portion to December 2009 and the term loan
portion to December 2011. The outstanding balance of the Green Valley Ranch Station revolving credit facility
as of December 31, 2004 was approximately $200 million. In connection with the Green Valley Facility, a
completion guaranty is required to complete the expansion of the property. The completion guaranty is an

obl gation of both partners.

Common Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 135 million shares of our common stock, $0.01 par value per share, 77,298,227
shares of which were issued and 10,185,343 shares of which were held in treasury as of December 31, 2004.
Each holder of our common stock is entitled to one vote for each share held of record on each matter submitted

to a vote of stockholders. Holders of our common stock have no cumulative voting, conversion, redemption or
preemptive rights or other rights to subscribe for additional shares other than pursuant to the Rights Plan described
below. Subject to any preferences that may be granted to the holders of our preferred stock, each holder of common
stock is entitled to receive ratably, such dividends as may be declared by our Board of Directors out of funds legally
available therefore, as well as any distributions to the stockholders and, in the event of liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Company, is entitled to share ratably in all of our assets that remain after payment of liabilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.125 per share to shareholders
of record on February 12, 2004, $0.175 per share to shareholders of record on May 14, 2004 and August 13,
2004 and $0.21 per share to shareholders of record on November 12, 2004. The total amount paid in dividends
for 2004 was $44.3 million. During the year ended December 31, 2003, we paid a dividend of $0.125 per share
to sharehclders of record on August 14, 2003 and November 13, 2004 for a total of $14.9 million.




Preferred Stock ;

We are authorized to issue up o 5 million shares of our preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share of which none
were issued. The Board of Directors, without further action by. ‘the holders of our common stock, may issue shares
of preferred stock in one or more series and may fix or alter the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions,
including the voting rights, redemption provisions (including sinking fund provisions), dividend rights, dividend
rates, liquidation rates, liquidation preferences, conversion rights and the description and number of shares
constitutingany wholly unissued series of preferred stock. Exjgl:ept as described above, our Board of Directors,
without funﬁer stockholder approval, may issue shares of pre‘ferred stock with rights that could adversely affect the
rights of the holders of our common stock. The issuance of errares of preferred stock under certain circumstances
could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of centroi of the Company or other corporate action.

Treasury Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we repurchased approximately 64,000 shares of our common stock
for approximately $3.2 million. We are authorized to repurchase up to approximately 19.5 million shares of our
common stock. As of December 31, 2004, we had acqurred approximately 10.2 million shares at a cost of

approxrmately $137.7 million.

nghts Plan f 99
On October 8, 1997, we declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (@ “Right”) for each outstanding StaTiON
share of common stock. The dividend was paid on October 21, 1997. Each Right entitles the registered holder to CAS‘:&S‘;]NC'
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purchase from us one one-hundredth of a share of Seriefe A Preferred Stock, par vatue $0.01 per share
{*Preferred Shares”) at a price of $40.00 per one one-huﬁdredth of a Preferred Share, subject to adjustment.
The Rights are not exercisable until the earlier of 10 days; following a public announcement that a person or
group of affiliated or associated persons have acquired beheficial ownership of 15% or more of our outstanding
common stock (“Acquiring Person”) or 10 business days (er such later date as may be dstermined by action

of the Board of Directors prior to such time as any person for group of affiliated persons becomes an Acquiring
Person) following the commencement of, or announcement of an intention to make a tender offer or exchange
offer, the consummation of which would resutt in the benef cial ownership by a person or group of 15% or more
of our outstanding common stock.

The Rights will expire on October 21, 2007. Acquiring Persons do not have the same rights to receive common
“stock as other holders upon exercise of the Rights. Becaese of the nature of the Preferred Shares’ dividend,
liquidation and voting rights, the value of one one-hundredth interest in a Preferred Share purchasable upon
exercise of each Right should approximate the value of orﬁe common share. In the event that any perscn or group
of affiliated or associated persons becomes an Acquiring Person, the proper provisions will be made so that each
holder of a Right, other than Rights beneficially ownad byj the Acquiring Person {which will thereafter become
'void), will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise that number of shares of common stock having a
imarket value of two times the exercise price of the Right; In the event that the Company is acquired in a merger
‘or other business combination transaction or 50% or mo}e of our consolidated assets or earning power are sold
-after aperson or group has become an Acguiring Persorﬁ, proper provision will be made so that each holder of a
"Right will thereafter have the right to receive, upon exererse thereof, that number of shares of common stock of
"the acquiring company, which at the time of such transeetion will have a market value of two times the exercise
price of the Right. Because of the characteristics of the Pights in connection with a person or group of affiliated
© or associated persons becoming an Acquiring Person, tbe Rights may have the effect of making an acguisition of
the Company more difficult and may discourage such ar) acquisition.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States. Certain of our accounting policies, including the detsrmination of slot club program liability, the
sstimated useful lives assigned to our assets, asset impairment, insurance reserves, purchase price allocations made
in connection with our acquisitions and the calculation of our income tax liabliities, require that we apply significant
judgment in defining the appropriate assumptions for calculating financial estimates. By their nature, these judgments
are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. Our judgments are based on our historical experience, terms of
existing contracts, observance of trends in the gaming industry and information available from other outside sources.
There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from our estimates. To provide an understanding of the
methodology we apply, our significant accounting policies and basis of presentaticn are discussed below, as well as
where appropriate in this discussion and analysis and in the notes to our consolidated financial statements.

Slot Club Programs

Our Boarding Pass and Amigo Club player rewards programs (the “Programs”) aflow customers to redeem points
earned from their gaming activity at all Station and Fiesta properties for complimentary food, beverage, rooms,
entertainment and merchandise. At the time redesmed, the retall value of complimentaries under the Programs
are recorded as revenue with a corresponding offsetting amount included in promotional allowances. The cost
associated with complimentary food, beverage, rooms, entertainment and merchandise redeemed under the
Programs is recorded in casino costs and expenses. We also record g liability for the estimated cost of the
outstanding peints under the Programs.

Self-Insurance Reserves

We are self insured up to certain stop loss amounts for workers’ compensation, major medical and general
liability costs. Insurance claims and reserves include accruals of estimated settlements for known claims, as well
as accruals of estimates for claims incurred but not reported. In estimating these accruals, we consider historical
loss experience and make judgments about the expected levels of costs per claim. We believe our estimates

of future liability are reasonable based upon our methodoltogy; however, changes in health care costs, accident
frequency and severity and other factors could materially affect the estimate for these liabilities.

Derivative Instruments

We enter into interest rate swaps from time to time in order to manage interest rate risks associated with our current
and anticipated future borrowings. The interest rate swaps that we have entered into qualify for the “shortcut” method
allowed under SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative instruments and Hedging Activities” (and as amended by
SFAS No. 138), which allows for an assumption of no ineffectivensss. As such, there is no income statement impact
from changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments. Instead, the fair value of the instrument is recorded as an
asset or liability on our balance sheet with an offsetting adjustment to the carrying value of the related debit.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the capitalized lease, whichever is less.
Costs of major improvements are capitalized, while costs of normal repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense as incurred.

We evaluate our property and equipment and other long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with SFAS
No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. For assets to be disposed of,

we recognize the asset to be sold at the lower of carrying value or fair market value less costs of disposal.

Fair market value for assets to be disposed of is generally estimated based on comparable asset sales, solicited




offers or a discounted cash flow model. For assets to be held and used, we review fixed assets for impairment
whenever indicators of impairment exist. If an indicator of xmpanrment exists, we compare the estimated future
cash ﬂows of the asset, on an undiscounted basis, to the Carrying value of the asset. If the undiscounted cash
flows exceed the carrying value, no impairment is indicated. If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the
carrying value, then impairment is measured based on fair;value compared to carrying value, with fair value

typically hased on a discounted cash flow model. Qur consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments
required by SFAS No. 144 as of December 31, 2004.

)
n

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

The FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other lntangrb\e Assets”, in June 2001. SFAS No. 142

changed the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. Amortization
of goodwil, including goodwill recorded in past business cycj)mbinations. ceased upon the adoption of SFAS

No. 142. We implemented SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002 and tested for impairment in accordance with

the provisions of SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2002‘:3nd annually perform such test. In order to test for
impairment of goodwill, we use the Income Approach, which focuses on the income-producing capability of the
respective property. The underlying premise of this approa(j;h is that the value of an asset can be measured by

* -the present worth of the net economic benefit (cash receibts less cash outlays) to be received over the life of

the subject asset. The steps followed in applying this apprbach include estimating the expected after-tax cash
ﬂows attributable to the respective property and convemng these after-tax cash flows to present value through
dlscountmg The discounting process uses a rate of return which accounts for both the time value of money and
investment risk factors. The present value of the after-tax cash flows is then totaled to arrive at an indication of
the fair value of the goodwill. If the fair value of the goodwil?l exceeds the carrying value, then impairment is
measured -based on the difference between the calculated fair value and the carrying value. Our consolidated
financial statements reflect all adjustments required by SFAS No. 142 as of December 31, 2004.

Income Taxes

We are subject to income taxes in the United States of Amenca and file a consolidated federal income tax return.
We account for income taxes according to SFAS No. 108, “Accounting for Income Taxes". SFAS No. 108
reQuires the recognition of deferred tax assets, net of applicable reserves, related to net operating loss carry
forwards and certain temporary differences. A valuation allowance is recognized if, based on the weight of available
‘evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or ali 6f the deferred tax asset will not be recognized.

Our income tax returns are subject to examination by the Ifiternal Revenue Service and other tax authorities.

We regularly assess the potential cutcomes of these exami‘hations in determining the adequacy of our provision
for income taxes and our income tax liabilities. Inherent in 2t‘)ur determination of any necessary reserves are
aésumptions based on past experiences and judgments about potential actions by taxing authorities.

Our estimate of the potential cutcome for any uncertain taxiissue is highly judgmental. We believe that we

have adequately provided for any reasonable and foreseeable outcome related to uncertain tax matters.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards ‘
In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R (Revised 2004),
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 128R"), which reguires that the compensation cost relating to

" share-based payment transactions be recognized in ﬂnanéiai statements based on alternative fair value models.
The share-based compensation cost will be measured baséd cn fair value models of the equity or liability
instruments issued. We currently disclose pro forma comt{ﬁensation expense quarterly and annually by
calculating the stock option grants’ fair value using the BIéék-Scho!es mode! and disclosing the impact
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on net income and net income per share in a note to the consolidated financial statements. Upon adoption,

pro forma disclosure will no longer be an alternative. SFAS No. 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions
in excess of recognized compensation cost te be reported as a financing cash flow rather than as an operating
cash flow as required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase
net financing cash flows in periods after adoption. While we cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the
future, the amount of operating cash flows recognized for such deductions were $62.6 milion, $25.6 million and
$3.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. We will begin to apply SFAS No. 123R using an appropriate fair
value model as of the interim reporting period ending September 30, 2005. Based on stock options outstanding
as of December 31, 2004, we estimate approximately $2.1 million in related expense to be recorded during 2005.

QUANTITATIVE AND
QUALITATIVE D1SCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest rates,
foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices. Our primary exposure 10 market risk is interest rate risk
associated with our long-term debt. We attempt to limit our exposure to interest rate risk by managing the mix
of our long-term fixed-rate borrowings and short-term borrowings under the Revolving Facility. Borrowings under
the Revolving Facility bear interest at a margin above the Alternate Base Rate or the Eurodollar Rate (each as
defined in the Revolving Facility) as selected by us. However, the amount of outstanding borrowings is expected
to fluctuate and may be reduced from time to time. The Revolving Facility matures in December 2009.

The ‘ollowing table provides information about our long-term debt at December 31, 2004 (see also "Description
of Certain Indebtedness and Capital Stock”) (amounts in thousands):

Maturity Face Carrying Estimated
date amount value Jair value
Revolving Facility at a weighted average

interest rate of approximately 4.9% December 2009  $ 1,000,000 § 51,500 $ 51,500
6'/2% senior subordinated notes February 2014 450,000 450,000 464,625
6% senior notes April 2012 450,000 448,354 460,125
67/5% senior subordinated notes March 2016 350,000 350,000 365,750
97/s% senior subordinated notes July 2010 375,000 17,332 18,225
8/5% senior notes February 2008 400,000 16,884 17,401
Other debt, interest at 6.0% 2007- 2008 6,108 5,060 6,060
Market value of interest rate swaps (1,927) (1,927) (1,927)

Total ©$ 3,029,176  $ 1,338,213 $1,381,759




) We are also exposed to market risk in the form of fluctuations in interest rates and their potential impact upon
our debt. This market risk is managed by utilizing derivative financial instruments in accordance with established
policies and procedures. We evaluate our exposure to mé}ket risk by monitoring interest rates in the marketplace,

" and do not utilize derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Our derivative financial instruments consist
‘éxclusively of interest rate swap agreements. Interest diﬂérentials resulting from these agreements are recorded
.on an acerual basis as an adjustment to interest expensef?!merest rate swaps related to deot are matched with

specific fixed-rate debt obligations.

i

The following table provides information about our financiél instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest

rates (amounts in thousands):

v

i . During the year ending December 31,

2005 2006 | 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total
. Long-term debt (nciuding current portiony: ;
| Fixed-rate $16804 & - $533 $ - $ - $1265687 $1,287.015
- Average interest rate 8.38% - 800% - - 6.50% 6.52% 103
 Variable-rate s 23 $ 25 § 262 $ 415  $51,500 $ - & 52225 Sramion
i “Average interest rate 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 4.93% - 494%  Casinos, Inc.
Interest rate swaps: i A:hi?)i L
Notional amount $ - $ - $ - $§ - § - $ 250000 § 250,000 RErORt
. Average payable rate - - : - - - 3.75% 3.75%
Average receivable rate - - { - - - 6.33% 8.33%
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(amounts in thousands, except share dara)

December 31,

2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 68417 $ 82272
Receivables, net 21,452 28,224
Inventeries 5,459 5,110
Prepaid gaming tax 16,432 14,940
Prepaid expenses 7,761 7,114
Deterred income tax - 16,804
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 119,521 134,464
Property and equipment, net 1,367,957 1,158,299
Goodwill and other intangibles, net 165,775 148,717
Land held for development 167,729 119,197
Investments in joint ventures 106,598 86,425
Other assets, net 128,004 98,870
Total assets $ 2,045584  $1,745972
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 16,917 $ 22
Accounts payable 10,351 20,438
Canstruction contracts payable 36,298 -
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 112,450 121,856
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 176,016 1423186
Long-term debt, less current portion 1,321,296 1,168,835
Deferred income tax, net 20,094 68,285
Qther long-term liabilities, net 39,257 29,497
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,656,663 1,406,033
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $0.01; authorized 135,000,000 shares;

77,298,227 and 70,912,227 shares issued 561 497
Treasury stock, 10,185,343 and 10,121,677 shares, at cost (137,714} (134,534)
Additional paid-in capital 567,839 387,973
Deferred compensation - restricted stock (77,598) (27.,003)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ©11) (1,334)
Retained earnings 136,344 114,340

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 488,921 333,939
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 2045584  § 1,745,972

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O OPERATIONS

(amounts in thousands, except per share data)
[

For the years ended December 31,

b

'

The accompmiying notes arc an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

2004 2003 2002
‘Operating revenues:
Casino $ 730,584 $ 648664 $ 638,113
Food and beverage 140,332 133,676 133,811
Room 57.057 50,460 48,579
Other 42,008 45943 40,790
Management fees 84,618 48,711 4,853
GROSS REVENUES 1,054,599 925,454 866,146
Promotional allowances (67,857) (67,365) {73,281}
NYT REVENUES 986,742 858,089 792,865
Operating costs and expenses:
Casino 273,816 265,203 258,383
Food and beverage 100,548 87,783 78,738
Room 21,083 18,580 18,000
Other 16,820 15,452 16,276
Selling, general and administrative 172,923 181,643 161,038
Corporate expense 47,189 33,039 31,9486
Development expense 10,683 4,306 -
Depraciation and amortization 85,807 73,144 72,783
Preopening expenses 848 ~ -
impairment oss - 18,868 8,791
Litigation settlement ~ 38,000 - 105
729,687 717,018 646,955
StaTiON
Casinos, Inc.
QPERATING INCOME 257,085 141,071 145910 2004
Earnings from joint ventures 28,524 20,804 11,293 ANNUAL
OPERATING INCOME AND EARNINGS FROM JOINT VENTURES 283,579 161,675 157,203 REPORT
Other income (expense):
" Interest expense (76,921 (92,940) (98,795)
Interest and other expense from joint ventures (4,485) {7,233) 6,272)
Interest income i 122 4,873 106
Loss on early retirement of debt (93,265) - (5,808)
Other (3,801) 1,802 1,322
{178,350) (93,498) {107,447)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND CUMULATIVE EFTECT
! OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 106,229 68,177 49,756
Income tax provision (38,879) (23,834) (18,508)
INCOME BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 66,350 44,343 31,248
Cumulative sffect of change in acoounting principle, ;
. net of applicable income tax benefit of $7,170 N - - {13.316)
Net income ! $ 66350 $ 44343 § 17,932
Basic and diluted earnings per common share: ‘
" Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:
* Basic. $ 1.03 8 076§ 0.54
Diluted 3 1.00 $ 0.72 $ a.61
. Net income:
Basic $ 1.03 8 078 % 0.31
Diluted $ .00 $ 072 % 0.30
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
' Basic 64,362 58,371 57,845
Diluted 5 66,264 61,850 60,730
Dividends paid per common share 3 0.8685 $ 0.250 $ -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(amounts in thousands)

Deferred  Accumulated
Additional  compensation other Total
Common Teasury paid-in restricted  comprehensive Retained  stockholders’
stock stock capital stock loss earnings equity
Balances, December 31, z001 $ 441 $ @9,248) § 300254 § (19,510 $ - $§ 66,967 $248,904
Exercise of stock options 11 - 12,322 ~ - - 12,333
Issuance of restricted stock 2 - 3,693 (3,695) - - -
Amortization of deferred compensation - - - 2,873 - - 2,973
Purchase of treasury stock, at
cost (743 shares) - (10,214) ~ - - - (10,214)
Green Vafley Ranch Station
interest rate swap market valuation
adjustment, net of income taxes - ~ - - {1,695) - {1,695)
Other - ~ 445 - - - 445
Net income - - - - - 17,932 17,832
Balances, December 31, 2002 454 (109,462) 316,714 (20,232) (1,695) 84,899 270,678
Exercise of stock aptions 39 - 58,724 - - - 58,763
Issuance of restricted stock 4 - 11,468 (11,472) - - ~
Amortization of deferred compensation - - - 3,201 - - 3,201
Purchase of treasury stock, at
cost (1,391 shares) - (25,072) - - - - (25072
Green Valley Ranch Station
interest rate swap market valuation
adjustment, net of income taxes - - - - 361 - 361
Dividends paid - - - - - (14,902) (14,902)
Other - - 1,067 1,500 - ~ 2,567
Net income - - - - - 44,343 44,343
Balances, December 31, 2003 497 (134,534) 387,973 (27,003) (1,334) 114,340 339,939
Exercise of stock options 52 - 117,584 - ~ - 117,636
Issuance of restricted stock, net 12 - 61,758 61,771) - - -
Amontization of deferred compensation - - - 9,676 - - 9,676
Purchase of treasury stock, at
cost (64 shares) - (3,180) - - - - (3,180}
Green Valley Ranch Station
interest rate swap market valuation
adjustment, net of income taxes - - - - 723 - 723
Dividends paid - - - - - (44,346) (44,346)
Other - - 823 1,500 - - 2,123
Net income - - - ~ - 66,350 66,350
Balances, December 31, 2004 $ 561 $(137,714)  $ 567,939 § (77,598) $ (611) $ 136,344 $ 488,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(amounts in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
NET INCOME 1 $ 66350 $ 44343 $ 17932
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operaung activities:
- Depreciation and amortization ; 85,807 73,144 72,783
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options . 62,643 25,620 3,194

« Impairrment loss ; - 18,868 8,791

" Earnings from joint ventures, net H (22,039) (13,371) (5,021)

Amortization of debt discount and issuance costs ' 2,845 3,156 4,082
Loss on early retirement of debt B 93,265 - 5,808

 Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle o - - 20,486

Changes in assets and liabilities: S

Receivables, net i 8,772 (8,291) 2,432

Inventories and prepaid expenses ! {2,488) (3,264) 858

Deferred Income tax ; (28,174) (449) 12,739

Accounts payable B (10,087} 11,804 (18,156)

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . (9,619) 41,713 3,992

Other, net 16,221 3,078 2,980

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS i 195,246 152,108 114,966

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 261,586 196,451 132,898

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital expenditures : (305,156} (179,655) (20,138) 107

Note receivable " - 34,487 {24,086)

'Purchase of land held for development ! (76,879) {19,117) {4,925) STATION
Proceeds from sale of land, property and equipment : 28,090 6,670 13,123 CasiNos, INc.
Investrments in joint ventures : - 2,329 (60) 2004
Accrued construction contracts payable i 99,158 - - ';:::;[:‘1‘
Payments on construction contracts ‘ (62,860) - (5.534)

Other, net v (19,467) {29,031) (18,773)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ! (337,114) (184,317) {60,393)
Cash flows from financing activities:
{Payments) borrowings under bank facility with maturity dates
less than three months, net : (75,500) 74.800 (25,900)

Borrowings under bank facility, maturity dates greater than three months - 310,000 135,000
Payments under bank facility, rmaturity dates greater than three months (50,000) {385,000y {40,000)
Principal payments on notes payable, net (22) (122) (3,560)
Purchase of treasury stock : (3.180) (25,072) {10,214}
Exercise of stock options : 54,993 33,143 9,139
Proceeds from interest rate swap termination ! - - 15,303
Redemption of senicr subordinated notes (1,028,815} - (155,685}

‘Proceeds from the issuance of senior notes B 1,248,214 - -
Payment of dividends ' (44,346} {14,902) -
Debt issuance costs (19,429) (792) (3,665)
Other, net . (252) (1,256) 299

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 81,663 (9,201) (79,283)
Cash and cash equivalents: ‘
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' 6,145 2,933 6,778)
Balance, beginning of year f 82,272 59,338 66,117
Balance, end of year | $§ 68417 $§ 62272 3 59,339
Supplemental cash flow disclosures:

Cash paid for interest, net of $6,968, $3,496 and $2,065 capxtalzed ¢ 62832 $ 91829 § 92,553

Cash (received) paid for income taxes, net $ 2558 $ 1329 % (2,567)
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash items: i

Investment in MPM : $ - $ 6082 3 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial !
;
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NoTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Basis of Presentation and Organization

Station Casinos, Inc. (the “Company”), a Nevada corporation, is a gaming and entertainment company
that currently owns and operates eight major hotel/casino properties (one of which is 50% owned) and
five smaller casino properties (one of which is 50% owned), in the Las Vegas metropolitan area, as well as
manages a casino for a Native American tribe. The accorpanying consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Palace Station, Boulder Station,
Texas Station, Sunset Station, Santa Fe Station, Fiesta Rancho, Fiesta Henderson, Wild Wild West, Wildfire,
Maglc Star and Gold Rush. The Company also consolidates MPM Enterprises, LLC ("MPM”}, in which it
owns a 50% interest and is required to be consolidated. The Company also owns a 50% interest in
Barley's and Green Valley Ranch Station and a 6.7% interest in the Palms Casino Resort, which are
accounted for under the equity method. The Company is the managing partner for both Barley's and
Green Valley Ranch Station. In addition, the Company manages Thunder Valley Casino {"Thunder Valley”)
in Sacramento, California on behalf of the United Auburn Indian Community ("UAIC™) under a management
and development contract, which expires on June 8, 2010. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated.

Acquisitions

On August 2, 2004, the Company acguired Magic Star and Gold Rush casinos in Henderson, Nevada.
The Company spent approximately $19.8 million for the acquisitions and enhancements to the facilities.
The acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The purchase price was
allocated based on estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. A total of approximately $8.2 miilion,
representing the excess of acquisition cost over the estimated fair value of the tangible net assets was
allocated to goodwill.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions for items such as slot club program
liability, self-insurance reserves, bad debt reserves, estimated useful lives assigned to fixed assets, asset
impairment, purchase price allocations made in connection with acquisitions and the calculation of the income
tax liabilities, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand at our properties, as weill as investments purchased with
an original maturity of 90 days or less.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market; cost being determined on a first-in, first-out basis.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the capitalized lease, whichever is less.
Costs of major improvements are capitalized, while costs of normal repairs and maintenance are charged

to expense as incurred.




The Company evaluates its property and equipment and other long lived assets for impairment in accordance
with Staterhent of Financiai Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets.” For assets to be disposed of, the Company recognizes the asset to be sold at the lower of
carrying value or fair market value less costs of disposal. Fair market value for assets to be disposed of is generally
estimated based on comparable asset sales, solicited offers or a discounted cash flow mode!. For assets to

be held and used; the Company reviews fixed assets for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist.

If an indicator of impairment exists, the Company compares the estimated future cash flows of the asset, on an
undiscounted basis, to the carrying value of the asset. If the undieéounted cash flows exceed the carrying value,
no impairment is indicated. If the undiscounted cash flows do notiexceed the carrying value, then an impairment
is measured based on fair value compared to carrying value, with fair value typically based on a discounted
cash ﬂow model. The consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments required by SFAS No. 144 as

of December 31, 2004. '

Capitalization of Interest
The Company capitalizes interest costs associated with debt incurred in connection with major construction
projects. interest capitalization ceases once the project is substaﬁtiauy complete or no longer undergoing

construction activities to prepare it for its intended use. When no debt is specifically identified as being incurred 109

in connection with such construction projects, the Company capitalizes interest on amounts expended on the STATION
project at the Company’s weighted average cost of borrowed money. Interest capitalized was approximately C"S'z':,(:f‘;m'
$7.0 milion, $3.5 million and $2.1 milion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. o

B

Goodwill and Other Intangibles K

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No, 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”, in June 2001. SFAS No. 142 changed the accounting forfgoodwill from an amortization method to an
impairment only approach. Amortization of goodwill, including goo?lw&l! recorded in past business combinations,
ceased upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142. The Company implemented SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002
and tested for impairment in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2002 and

will annuany perform such test in the fourth quarter of each subsequent year. As a result of an independent third
party appreusal the Company recorded an impairment ioss of $1 3 3 million, net of the applicable tax benefit,
during 2002 related to Figsta Rancho, which is shown as a cumuletlve effect of a change in accounting principle
in the Cdmpany’s consolidated statements of operations. Fiesta Rancho was purchased in early 2001, and there
were no events or changes in circumstances (“triggering events”) dun’ng the course of 2001 that would have
indicated the recoverability of the carryihg amount of the property should be assessed. As a result, there was

no requirement to test for impairment under the provisions of SFAS No. 121, which was the primary literature
regarding the impairment of an asset prior to the adoption of SFAé No. 142. The Cornpany tested for impairment
of goodwill in the fourth quarter of 2002 and determined that theré was no impairment, The Company tested for
impairment of goodwill in the fourth quarter of 2003 and recorded:\‘an impairment loss of $17.5 milion at Fiesta
Rancho as a result of reduced growth assumptions. The Company tested for impairment of goodwill in the fourth
quarter of 2004 and determined there was no impairment. :

Also, in connection with the acquisition of Fiesta Rancho, the Conﬁpany acquired the customer list and is
amortizing it over five years, The customer list was valued at $5.0‘:mH|ion at the time of the purchase and as
of December 31, 2004, had a net book value of approximately $1.2 million.

i
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Debt Issuance Costs
Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt are capitalized and amortized
to interest expense over the expected terms of the related debt agreements and are included in other assets
on the Company’s consolidated balance sheats.

Preopening Expenses

Preopening expenses have been expensed as incurred. The construction phase of a project typically covers a
period of 12 to 24 months. The majority of preopening costs are incurred in the three months prior to opening.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Cornpany incurred preopening expenses of $0.8 miflion retated
to the development of Red Rock (see Note 10).

Interest Rate Swaps

From time to time, the Company uses interest rate swaps and similar financial instruments to assist in managing
interest incurred on its long-term debt. The difference between amounts received and paid under such agreements,
as well as any costs or fees, is recorded as a reduction of, or addition to, interest expense as incurred over the life
of the swap or similar financial instrument (see Note 9).

Revenues and Promotional Allowances

The Company recognizes as casino revenues the net win from gaming activities, which is the difference between
gaming wins and losses. All other revenues are recognized as the service is provided. Revenues include the retail
value of food, beverage, rooms, entertainment and merchandise provided on a complimentary basis to customers.
Such amounts are then deducted from revenues as promotional allowances on the Company’s consclidated
statements of operations. The estimated departmental costs of providing such promotional allowances are
included in casino costs and expenses and consist of the following (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Food and beverage $ 59,391 $ 57985 $ 59,781
Room 3,488 3,119 3,028
Other 2,891 3,057 2,889
Total $ 65771 $ 64,161 $ 65,703

The Company’s Boarding Pass and Amigo Club player rewards programs (the “Programs”) allow customers

to redeem points earned from their gaming activity at all Station and Fiesta properties for complimentary food,
beverage, rooms, entertainment and merchandise. At the time redeemed, the retail value of complimentaries
under the Programs are recorded as revenue with a corresponding offsetting amount included in promotional
allowances. The cost associated with complimentary food, beverage, rooms, entertainment and merchandise
redeemed under the Programs is recorded in casino costs and expenses. The Company also records a liabifity
for the estimated cost of the outstanding points under the Programs.

Related Party Transactions

The Cornpany has entered into various related party transactions, which consist primarily of lease payments
related to ground leases at Boulder Station and Texas Station and the purchase of Wildfire. The expenses related
to these related party ground lease transactions were approximately $5.7 million, $5.4 million and $5.1 million

for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. In addition, on January 27, 20083, the



Company purchased substantially all of the assets of Wildfire for $8.0 million from Bauchman Gamming Ventures,
LLC, a company owned by the two brothers-in-law of Scott M Nielson, the Company's Executive Vice President
and Chief Development Officer. ‘

Earnings Applicable to Common Stock “

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share”, basic EPS is computed by

dividing net income applicable to common stack by the wéighted average common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS reflects the additional dilution for ajj potentially dilutive securities such as stock options.

The weighted average number of common shares used in ﬁhe calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Weighted average common shares outstanding )
{used in: caloutation of basic earnings per share) l 64,362 58,371 57,845 111
Potential dilution from the assumed exercise of stock options ' 1,902 3,479 2,885
: StATION
g . L Casmnos, INc,
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding 2004
{used in calculation of diluted earnings per share) 66,264 61,850 60,730 ANNUAL
REPORT

‘The number of antidilutive stock options as of December 31’ 2004, 2003 and 2002 was 0, 28,000 and
0.2, million, respectively.
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Stock-Based Employee Compensation

The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based
employee compensation programs. Accerdingly, compensation expense recognized was different than

what would have been otherwise recognized under the fair value based method defined in SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. Had compensation expense for the plans been determined in
accordance with SFAS No. 123, the effect on the Company's net income and basic and diluted earnings per

common share would have been as follows (amounts in thousands, except per share data):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net income:
As reported $ 66,350 $ 44,343 $ 17,932
Stock-based compensation expanse reported in net income 404 694 289
Stock-based compensation expense under fair value method (6,029) (8,175) (7,022)
Pro forma net income $ 60,725 $ 36,862 $ 11,199
Eamings per common share:
Basic - as reported $ 1.08 $ 076 $ 0314
Basic - pro forma 0.94 Q.63 0.19
Diluted - as reported $ 1.00 $ 072 $ 030
0.92 0.60 0.18

Diluted - pro forma

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing

method with the following assumptions:

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Expected dividend yield - 1.63% -
Expected stock price volatility - 54.30% 56.34%
Risk-free interest rate - 2.97% 3.82%
Expected average life of options {years) - 3.42 4.42
- $ 7.3 $ 6.69

Weighted average fair value per option granted

There were no stock option grants during 2004 therefore there is no fair value assumptions. Because the
SFAS No. 123 method of accounting has not been applied to options granted prior to April 1, 1985, the

resulting pro forma net income may not be representative of that to be expected in future years.




Operating Segments
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, requires separate

‘ ﬂnancial information be disclosed for all operating segmentfs of a business. The Company believes that it meets
the “economic similarity” criteria established by SFAS No. 131, and as a result, the Company aggregates all of its
properties into one operating segment. All of our properties offer the same products, cater to the same customer
base, are all located in the greater Las Vegas, Nevada areaj,} have the same regulatory and tax structure, share
the same marketing techniques and are all directed by a céntralized management structure.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In‘December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financiaji Accounting Standards No. 123R (Revised 2004},
“Share-Based Payment” {“SFAS No. 123R"), which require§ that the compensation cost relating to share-based
payment transactions be recognized in financial statemeﬁts based on alternative fair value models.
The share-based compensation cost will be measured based on fair value models of the equity or liability
instruments issued. The Company currently discloses pro fprma compensation expense quarterly and annually

. by calculating the stock option grants’ fair value using the Biack-Scholes model and disclosing the impact on net
income and net income per share in a note to the consolidated financial statements. Upon adoption, pro forma
disclosure will no longer be an alternative. The table above::reﬂects the estimated impact that such a change in
accounting treatment would have had on our net income and net inccme per share if it had been in effect during
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. SFAS Ne. 123R alsc requires the benefits of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow rather than as
an operating cash flow as required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows
and increase net financing cash flows in periods after ado;ﬁiion. While the Company cannot estimate what
those amounts will be in the future, the amount of operating cash flows recognized for such deductions were
$62.6 million, $25.6 million and $3.2 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company will begin
to apply SFAS No. 123R using an appropriate fair value model as of the interim reporting period ending
September 30, 2005. Based on stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2004, the Company estimates

. approximately $2.1 million in expense to be recorded during 2005.

Reclassifications i

Certain amounts in the December 31, 2003 and 2002 conéolidated financial statements have been reclassified
to conform to the December 31, 2004 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the previously
reported net income. ‘
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2. RECEIVABLES

Components of receivables are as follows {amounts in thousands):

December 31,
2004 2003
Casino $ 5554 $ 7,166
Hotel 3,723 2.428
Management fees 8,168 6,301
Income tax 172 7,181
Other 5,837 8,034
23,454 31,110
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,002) (2.886)
Receivables, net $ 21,452 $ 28,224
3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following (amounts in thousands):
December 31,
Estimated life (years) 2004 2003
Land - $ 154,724 $ 140,043
Buildings and improvements 10 -45 946,243 901,347
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-7 472,599 382818
Canstruction in progress - 241,485 99,455
1,815,051 1,533,663
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (447,094} (375,364)
Property and equipment, net $1,367,957 $1,158,299

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, substantially all property and equipment of the Company is pledged as collateral

for long-term debt.




4. LAND HELD FOR/DEVELOPMENT

- AS of December 31, 2004, the Company had $167.7 million of land held for development that consists primarily
. of five sites that are owned or leased, which comprise 198§acres in the Las Vegas valtey and 188 acres in the
Sécramento area near Thunder Valley. The Durango site, Igcated at the intersection of Durango Road and

the Southern. Beltway/interstate 215 in the southwest qua&rant of Las Vegas, currently consists of 67 acres.
The Company also owns a 48-acre gaming-entitted parcel in southwest Las Vegas at the intersection of
Flammgo Road and Interstate 215. During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company purchased
approximately 54 acres of land in a gaming enterprise district on the southern end of Las Vegas Boulevard at
Cactus Avenue for approximately $33.9 miflion. in addition‘:" the Company leases and has an option to purchase
2.5 acres adjacent to this site. On October 1, 2004, the Company purchased approximately 26 acres of real

’ property and improvements formerly known as the Castaways Hotel Casino and Bowling Center

{the “Castaways”) in Las Vegas, Nevada, for $33.75 million. The Castaways closed on January 26, 2004,
shortly after its former owners filed for bankruptcy. The Company is currently evaluating the potential uses of
the property, but does not believe it is competitive and does not intend to operate the facility in its current state.

In April 2004, the Company sold a 27-acre parcel of land, after removing the gaming entitierents, located at
the intersection of Boulder Highway and Nellis Boulevard fér net proceeds of approximately $10.5 mifion.

In Ju!y 2004 the Company sold a 68-acre parcel of land, after removing the gaming entitlements, located at the
mtersect:on of Boulder Highway and Tropicana Avenue in eastern Las Vegas for net proceeds of approximately
$15.2 milion. As a result of the sale of these parcels of land the Company recorded a loss of approximately
$2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004.

The Company also has acquired or is under contract to acduire approximately 58 acres of land on which

Wild Wild West is located and the surrounding area of whicfj, approximately 27 acres have been acquired as of
December 31, 2004. The Company has exercised its option‘ to purchase the 139-acre parcel of leased land on
which Witd Wild West is located. Pursuant 10 the lease, the purchase wilt occur in Juty 2005 at a purchase price
of approximately $36 million. No amounts related to this purchase option have been recorded on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets. The Company has also agreesi to purchase an additional 12 acres of land and is
expéected to close on these transactions in the first quarter ;Sf 2006.

The Company has acquired certain parcels of land in the Las Vegas valley and near Sacramento, California as
part of its future development activities. The Company’s decrsnon whether to proceed with any new gaming or

4 deve{opment opportunity is dependent upon future economlc and regulatory factors, the availability of financing
and competitive and strategic considerations. As many of these considerations are beyond the Company's
control, no assurances can be made that it will be able to sscure additional, acceptable financing in order to
proceed with any particular project. !
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5. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Company has investments in two 50% owned joint ventures, Green Valley Ranch Station and Barley’s, and a

6.7% investment in a joint venture that owns the Palms Casino Resort in Las Vegas, Nevada, that are accounted

for under the equity method. Under the equity method, original investments are recorded at cost and adjusted

by the Gompany's share of earnings, losses and distributions of the joint ventures, The investment balance also

includes interest capitalized during the construction period, which is amortized against the earnings of the joint

venture. Investments in joint ventures consist of the following (amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003

Green Valley Ranch Station (50.0%) $ 85274 $ 66,484

Barley's (50.0%) 2,084 2,899

Palms Casino Resort (6.7%) 18,340 17,042

Investments in joint ventures $ 108598 $ 86,425
Summarized balance sheet information for the joint ventures is as follows {amounts in thousands):

December 31,

2004 2003

Current assets $ 72,451 $ 51,551

Property and equipment and other assets, net 633,592 525,515

Current liabilities 60,605 37,977

Long-term debt and other liabilities 243,430 196,399

Stockholders' equity 402,008 342,690

Summarized results of operations for the joint ventures are as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Net revenues $ 385838 $ 327,190 $ 276,051
Operating costs and expenses 302,135 263,481 236,817
OPERATING INCOME 83,703 63,709 39,234
Interest and other expense, net 10,089 12,734 18,450
Net income S 73634 $§ 50975 § 19,784




The operating earnings from these joint ventures are shown as a separate line item on the Company’s consolidated
statements of operations after operating income. In additionj interest and other expense from these joint ventures
is shown as a separate component under other income (eprense) in the Company’s consciidated statements of
operations, The following table identifies the total equity earnings from joint ventures (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Operating earnings from joint ventures i $ 26524 $ 20,604 $ 11,288

Intérest and other expense from joint ventures : (4,485) (7.233) 6,272)
Net earnings from joint ventures ; $ 22,039 $ 13,37 $ 5,021

Green Valley Ranch Station ‘
Green Valley Ranch Station is owned by a 50/50 joint ventdfe between the Company and GCR Gaming.

- In December 2004, Green Valley Ranch Station entered into :a new $250 million Second Amended and Restated
Loan Agreement (the “Green Valley Facility”}, which reﬁnancjéd the existing $250 million revolving credit facitity 117
and term loan. The Green Valley Facility extends the maturify of the revolving portion to December 2002 and the STaTiON
term loan pertion to December 2011, The outstanding balance of the Green Valley Ranch Station revolving credit CAS';&S‘;INC

facility as of December 31, 2004, was approximately $200 ﬁwillion. ANNUAL
f REFORT

6. MANAGEMENT FEES

The Company manages Thunder Valley for the UAIC and receives a management fee equal to 24% of net income
(as defined in the management agreement). The Company is also the managing partner for both Green Valley
Ranch Station and Barley’s and receives a management fe€ equal to 2% of revenues and approximately 5% of
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amertization {"EBITDA") from Green Valiey Ranch Station and
10% of EBITDA from Barley's. The Company’s management fees are included in net revenues on the Company's
consolidated statements of operations. ;

United Auburn Indian Community i

The Company has entered into a Development Services Agreement and a Management Agreement with the
UAIC. The Company's seven-year Management Agreemer}i was approved by the National Indian Gaming
Commission (“NIGC") and expires in June 2010. Pursuant to those agreements, and in comptiance with a
Memorandum of Understanding entered into by the UAIC and Placer County, California, the Company and the
UAIC developed Thunder Valley, a gaming and entertainment facility on approximately 49 acres located approximately
seven miles north of Interstate 80, in Placer County, Califorhia, near Sacramento, which opened on June 9, 2003.
In: June 2004, the UAIC successfully negotiated a new Tribal-State Gaming Compact (“Amended Compact”) with
the State of California, which has been approved by the United States Department of the interior (the “DOI").

The Amended Compact allows an unlimited number of siot machines at Thunder Valley and extends the term an
additional 10 years to 2030. The Amended Compact also includes a revenue sharing agreement with the State
of California. The UAIC will pay approximately $33.8 million annually to the State of California commencing in
January 2005 and additional fees ranging from $11,000 to $13,200 per machine for any slot machines added
above the 1,906 machines that were in operation at Thunder Valley prior to the Amended Compact.
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On September 17, 2002, the DO! accepted the land into trust on behalf of the UAIC. The acceptance cof the land
into trust followed the decision of the United States District Court for the District of Washington, D.C., dismissing a
lawsuit filed by the cities of Roseville and Rocklin, California, and Citizens for Safer Communities, which challenged
the DOI's decision to accept the land into trust. Immediately following the District Court’s decision, the plaintiffs
appealed the decision to the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia. On November 14, 2003,
the Court of Appeals affirmed the dismissal of the lawsuit by the District Court. On February 15, 2004, Citizens for
Safer Communities filed a petition for writ of certiorari with the United States Supreme Court, seeking to appeal the
decision of the Court of Appeals. The remaining plaintiffs did not seek to appeal the decision. On April 5, 2004, the
United States Supreme Court denied Citizens for Safer Communities’ petition for writ of certiorari.

7. ASSET IMPAIRMENT

The Company recorded an impairment loss of approximately $18.9 million and $8.8 million in the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, 1o adjust the carrying value of its goodwill and other assets to their
estimated fair value. The $18.9 million impairment loss in 2003 related to the write-off of approximately
$17.5 million in goodwill at Fiesta Rancho in accordance with SFAS No. 142 as a result of reduced growth
assumptions. The remaining $1.4 million impairment loss in 2003 was primarily related to the write off of the
Company's investment in a new slot product development. The impairment of this asset was based upon a
decision by the Company to no longer pursue the development of certain sict products. As a result, all of the
development costs that the Company had incurred were written off, as they were deemed to have no value.

During the year ended December 31, 2002, approximately $3.9 million of the impairment loss related to the
write-down of certain assets related to the Company’s investments in an Internet, intra-state gaming platform
and related technology. In May 2002, the Nevada Gaming Commission communicated that it had general
concerns regarding the security and reliability of Internet gaming platforms. The impairment of these assets was
based upon a decision by the Company to no longer pursue Nevada-based Internet gaming activities as a result
of the uncertainty of regulatory approval of these types of activities. As a result, all of the hardware, software and
internal development costs that the Company had incurred were written off in 2002, as they were deemed to
have no value. In addition, approximately $4.9 million of the impairment loss was related to the Company’s
option to invest in an Internet wagering business. In February 2002, the Company announced that it intended
to purchase a 50% interest in Kerzner Interactive Limited (formerly SunCnline Limited) (“Kerzner Interactive™),

a wholly owned subsidiary of Kerzner International Limited (formerly Sun Internationat Hotels Limited) (“Kerzner”).
Kerzner Interactive was to be the exclusive vehicle for both Kerzner and the Company to pursue the Internet
wagering business. In July 2002, the Company converted its agreement to acquire a 50% interest in Kerzner
Interactive into an option to do so, and paid $4.5 million for such option. Kerzner decided to discontinue
Kerzner interactive, as it targeted Internet wagering only from jurisdictions that permitted cnline gaming.

As these jurisdictions became more restrictive in their acceptance of Internet gahing, the market size was
reduced and competition intensified, resulting in a substantial decrease in the probability of achieving profitability
in the short-to-medium term. As a result, the Company wrote off the option payment and other costs related to
this investment in 2002.




8. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the fbllowing {amounts in thousands):

L December 31,
2004 2003
Accrued payroll and related $ 40874 & 24774
Accrued interest payable 27,524 14,655
Accrued progressives i 5,086 4,488
Accrued group insurance 4,194 2,021
Litigation settlement - 38,000
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities 34,762 37,047
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 112450 § 121,856
g. Long-TERM!DEBT
Long-term debt consists of the following (amounts in thousand‘s):
Deceniber 31,
2004 2003
Revalving credit fadiity, $1.0 bilion limit at December 31, 2004, due Decamber 31, 2008,
interest at a'margin above the Alternate Base Rate or the Eurodofiar Rate
(4.9% at December 31, 2004) $ 51,500 $ 177,000
61/,% senior subordinated notes, interest payable semi-annually,
pdncipal due February 1, 2014, callable February 1, 2009 450,000 -
6% senicr notes, interest payable semi-annually, principal due April 1, 2012, callable
April 1, 2008, net of unamortized discount of $1.8 million at December 31, 2004 448,354 -
87/:% serticr subordinated notes, interest payable semi-annually, principal
due March 1, 20186, callable March 1, 2009 “ 350,000 -
97/,% senior subordinated notes, interest payable semi-annually, principal
due July 1, 2010, callable July 1, 2005, net of unamortized discount of $46
and $1.1 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively Y 17,332 373,888
83/:% senior notgs, interest payable semi-annually, principal due
Febmary 15, 2008, called February 15, 2005 16,894 400,000
B7/s% senior subordinated notes, interest payable semi-annually,
principal dus December 1, 2008 - 199,900
Other long-term debt, interest at 6.0% at December 31, 2004,
maturity dates ranging from 2007 to 2008 6.060 6,082
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT 1,340,140 1,156,868
Current portion of long-term debt (16,917) {22)
Market vaiue of interest rate swaps (1,827) 12,089
Total long-term debt, net $ 1,321,296  $ 1,188,935

119

STATION
Casinos, INc,
2004
ANNUAL
REPORT




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

120

Revolving Facility

in December 2004, the Company increased its availability under its revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”)
to $1.0 billion and extended the maturity by two years to December 2009. The Revolving Facility contains no
principal amortization. The Borrowers are the major operating subsidiaries and the Revolving Facility is secured
by substantially alf of the Company's assets. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility bear interest at a margin
above the Alternate Base Rate or the Eurodollar Rate (each as defined in the Revolving Facility), as selected by
the Company. The margin above such rates, and the fee on the unfunded portions of the Revolving Faclility, will
vary guarterly based on the Company’s combined consolidated ratio of debt to Adjusted EBITDA (as defined in the
Revolving Facility). As of December 31, 2004, the Borrowers’ margin above the Eurodollar Rate on borrowings under
the Revolving Facility was 1.38%. The maximum margin for Eurodollar Rate borrowings is 2.13%. The maximum
margin for Alternate Base Rate borrowings is 0.88%. As of December 31, 2004, the fee for the unfunded portion

of the Revolving Facility was 0.25%.

The Revolving Facifity contains certain financial and other covenants. These include a maximum funded debt to
Adjusted EBITDA ratio for the Borrowers combined of 2.50 to 1.00 for each quarter and a minimum fixed charge
coverage ratio for the preceding four quarters for the Borrowers combined of 1.80 ta 1.00 for each quarter.

As of December 31, 2004, the Borrowers’ funded debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio was 0.21 to 1.00 and the fixed
charge coverage ratio was 2.31 to 1.00. In addition, the Revolving Facility has financial and other covenants,
which require that the maximum consolidated funded debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio can be nc more than 5.50
to 1.00 through December 31, 2005, which reduces to 5.25 to 1.00 on March 31, 2006 through December 31,
20086, to 5.00 to 1.00 on March 31, 2007 through December 31, 2007, to 4.75 to 1.00 on March 31, 2008
through December 31, 2008 and 0 4.50 to 1.00 on March 31, 2009. Other covenants limit prepayments of
indebtedness or rent (including subordinated debt other than re-financings meeting certain criteria), limitations
on asset dispositions, limitations on dividends, limitations on indebtedness, limitations on investments and
limitations on capital expenditures. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s consolidated funded debt to
Adjusted EBITDA ratio was 3.58 to 1.00. The Company has pledged the stock of all of its major subsidiaries.

Senior and Senior Subordinated Notes

During the first quarter of 2004, the Company refinanced substantially all of its senior and senior subordinated
notes. The Company issued $1.25 billion in new senior and senior subordinated notes which consists of $450.0
million 6% senior notes due in April 2012, $450.0 million 6'/:% senior subordinated notes due in February 2014
and $350.0 million 6 7/;% senior subordinated notes due in March 2018. The proceeds from these offerings were
used to redeem or repurchase the $1939.9 miflion 87/s% senior subordinated notes due in December 2008, to
repurchase $357.6 million of the 97/:% senior subordinated notes due in July 2010, to repurchase $383.1 million
of the 8%s% senior notes due in February 2008 and to reduce amounts outstanding under the Revolving Facility.
As a result of these redemptions, the Company recorded a foss on early retirement of debt of approximately
$93.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2004 to reflect the write-off of the unamortized loan costs,
unamortized discount, call premium, tender fee and consent payments which were partially offset by the fair
value of the interest rate swaps that were tied directly to the redeemed senior and senior subordinated notes.

On February 15, 2005, the Company redeemed the remaining $16.9 million of outstanding 8%% senior notes
due 2008. As a resutt of the redemption, the Company will record a loss on early retirement of debt of approximately
$0.7 million in the first quarter of 2005 to reflect the write-off of the unamortized loan costs and call premium.




" The indentures (the “Indentures”) governing the Company’s senior subordinated notes {the “Notes") contain

" certain customary financial and other covenants, which limit the Company and its subsidiaries’ ability to incur

‘ additionat debt. At December 31, 2004, the Company’s Consolidated Coverage Ratio (as defined in the

" Indentures) was 4.07 to 1.00. The Indentures provide that the Company may not incur additional indebtedness,
other than specified types of indebtedness, unless the donsolidated Coverage Ratic is at least 2.00 to 1.00.

"In the event the Company’s Consolidated Coverage Ratioi is below 2,00 to 1.00, the covenant limits the Company's
ability to incur additional indebtedness for borrowings ur'ﬂder the Revolving Facility not to exceed the greater of

= $200 million or 1.5 times Operating Cash Flow (as definéd) for the four most recent quarters, plus $15 million.
‘The Indentures also give the holders of the Notes the right to require the Company to purchase the Notes at
101% of the principal amount of the Notes plus accrued”interest thereon upon a Ghange of Control and Rating
Deciine {each as defined in the Indentures) of the Company In addition, the indenture governing the Senior Notes
contains a limitation on liens the Company can incur.

The Company has entered into various interest rate swaps with members of its bank group to manage interest
expense. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has inierest rate swaps with a combined notional amount of
$250.0 rillion that are tieg directly to the Company's 6'/2% senior subordinated notes and the Company’s 6%
senior notes. The interest rate swaps convert a portion ofl;the Company's fixed-rate debt to a floating-rate based
upon three and six-month LIBOR rates. At December 31 ,"‘2004, the Company pays a weighted average rate
‘pased on LIBOR, which approximates 3.75% and receiveé a weighted average rate of 6.33%. The interest rate
swaps terminate in April 2012 and February 2014. The net effect of the interest rate swaps resulted in a reduction
in interest expense of $7.3 million, $3.6 milion and $10.7 mmaon tor the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

The interest rate swaps that the Company entered into qualify for the “shartcut” methad allowed under SFAS No.
133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” {and as.amended by SFAS No. 138), which
allows for an assumption of no ineffectiveness. As such, th‘(ere is no income statement impact from changes in
the fair value of the hedging instruments. Instead, the fair vaiue of the instrument is recorded as an asset or
fiability on the Company's balance sheet with an offsetting adjustment to the carrying value of the related debt.

in accordance with SFAS No. 133, the Company recorded al iability of $2.2 mitiion and an asset of $3.9 million
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, representlng the fair value of the interest rate swaps and a
corresponding decrease and increase in long-term debt, as these interest rate swaps are considered highly
eﬁebtive under the criteria established by SFAS No. 133.

In March ‘2004, the Company terminated an interest rate swép with a notional amount of $50.0 million, which was
due 1o terminate in 2008. The interest rate swap was terminated at its market value and, as a resutt, the Company
received approximately $3.6 million, which is included in the “ca!culation of the net loss on the earty retirement of
debt as the interest rate swap was tied directly to the redemptaon of the $400.0 million 8%/5% senior notes.

in December 2002, the Company terminated an interest rate’ swap with a notional amount of $100 mifion, which
was due to terminate in 2010. The interest rate swap was tefminated at its market value and, as a result, the
Company received approximately $8.5 miflion. This interest rate swap was tied directly to the $375 miion 97/s%
sefior subordinated notes. Approximately $357.6 million of the 97/s% senior subordinated notes were redeemed
in the first quarter of 2004 and, as a result, approximately $7.8 million of the remaining value of this fair value
hedge termination was included in the calculation of the net 1035 on the early retirement of debt.
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On Octaber 18, 2002, the Company redeemed its $150 million 9%:% senior subordinated notes. The redemption
was funded with proceeds from the Revolving Facility. The Company recorded a charge of approximately

$10.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2002, to reflect the write-off of the unamortized debt
discount, unamortized ioan costs and the premium to redeem the $150 million 9%/,% senior subordinated notes.
This charge was partially offset by approximately $5.7 million from the adjusted basis of the debt as a result

of the fair value hedge termination that was tied directly to the $150 million 8%:% senior subordinated notes,

as discussed below. In addition, the Company recorded a loss on early retirement of debt of approximately
$1.4 miliion in 2002 to reflect the write-off of the unamortized loan costs on the previous revolving facility.

In September 2002, the Company terminated an interest rate swap with a notional amount of $150 million, which
was due to terminate in 2007. The interest rate swap was terminated at its market value and, as a result, the
Company received approximately $5.8 million. This interest rate swap was tied directly to the $150 milion 9%/.%
senior subordinated notes. The mark-to-market adjustment was amortized as a reduction of interest expense over
the original contract life of the interest rate swap. When the $150 milfion 9%/,% senior subordinated notes were
redeemed on October 18, 2002, the adjusted basis of the debt as a result of the fair value hedge termination of
approxmately $5.7 million was included in the calculation of the net loss on the early retirement of the related debt.

The estimated fair value of the Company's long-term debt at December 31, 2004 was approximately $1.38
billion, compared to its book value of approximately $1.34 biffion. The estimated fair value amounts were based
on quoted market prices on or about December 31, 2004, for the Company’s debt securities that are publicly
traded. For the Revolving Facility, the fair value approximates the carrying amount of the debt due to the short-
term maturities of the individual components of the debt.

Scheduled maturities of fong-term debt are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

2005 $ 16,917
2006 25
2007 5,596
2008 415
2009 51,500
Thereafter 1,265,687

Total $ 1,340,140




10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Red Rock
In April 2004, we commenced construction of Red Rock Resort Spa and Casino ("Red Rock”) located on Charleston
Boulevard at the Interstate 215/Charleston interchange in the Summerlin master-planned community in Las Vegas,
Nevada. Theinitial phase of the property is expected to be Qompleted near the end of the first quarter of 2008,

We have also announced plans to accelerate the construction of a phase Il expansion. Construction on phase It

of Red Rock is expected to begin in the |atter part of 2005 and is expected to be completed by the end of 20086.
The total project will now include over 2,800 slot machines, ‘over 850 hotel rooms, 94,000 square feet of meeting
and convention space, a 35,000 square-foot spa, nine full service restaurants, a 16-screen movie theater complex,
a night club and private pool club to be operated by Midnigh{ Qil Company, both indoor and outdoor entertainment
venues and parking for almost 5,500 vehicles. As a resutt of.an increase in amenities, an upgrade in the quality of
finishes throughout the project, general increases in construction cost and addition of the phase Il expansion, the
total cost of Red Rock is expected to be approximately $800 million, of which approximately $151.3 milion has
been spent as of December 31, 2004,

Santa Fe Station Expansion .
In 2003, the Company began a $52 million expansion at Santa Fe Station, The expansion includes additional
casino space, slot machines, a new movie theater complex, an upgrade of the property’s bowling center, a new

" éntertainment venue and bar, a new Kid's Quest facility and other amenities as well as removal of the ice arena.
The additional slots, upgrade of the bowling center and new entertainment venue were completed in December
2004. The Company believes the remaining items will be cémpleted in the first quarter of 2005 with the exception
of the movie theater complex, which will be completed in Aprll 2005. Approximately $35.8 million has been spent
on the expansion as of December 31, 2004.

Sunset Station Expansion

The Company is currently expanding Sunset Station to add a bowling center. The cost of the expansion is
expacted to be approximately $27 million, of which approximately $9.5 milion has been spent as of December 31,
2004. The Company believes that the expansion will be cémpleted in April 2005.

Boulder Station Lease ‘

The Company entered into a ground lease for 27 acres of land on which Boulder Station is located. The Company
leases this land from KB Enterprises, a company cwned by Frank J. Fertitta, Jr. and Victoria K. Fertitta

(the “Related Lessor”), the parents of Frank J. Fertitta Ill, Chairman of the Board and Chisf Executive Officer of the
Company and Lorenzo J. Fertitta, Vice Chairman and President of the Company. The lease has a maximum term
of 65 years, ending in June 2058. The lease provides for monthly payments of $183,333 through June 2008.

In July 2008, and every ten years thereafter, the rent wifl beSédjusted by a cost of living factor. In July 2013, and
every ten years thereafter, the rent will be adjusted to the product of the fair market value of the land and the
greater of {) the then prevailing annual rate of return for comparably situated property or (i) 8% per year. in no
event will the rent for any period be less than the wmmedlately preceding period. Pursuant to the ground lease, the
Company has an option, exercisable at five-year intervals with the next option in June 2008, to purchase the land
at fair market value, The Company’s leasehold interest in the property is subject to a lien to secure borrowmgs
under the Revolving Facility. :
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Texas Station Lease

The Company entered into a ground lease for 47 acres of land on which Texas Station is located. The Company
leases this land from Texas Gambling Hall & Hotel, Inc., a company owned by the Related Lessor. The lease has
a maximum term of 65 years, ending in July 2060. The lease provides for monthly rental payments of $287,500
through June 2005. in July 2005, and every ten vears thereafter, the rent will be adjusted by a cost of living factor.
In July 2010, and every ten years thereafter, the rent will be adjusted to the product of the fair market value of the
land and the greater of (i) the then prevailing annual rate of return being realized for owners of comparable land

in Clark County or (i) 8% per year. In no event will the rent for any period be less than the immediately preceding
period. Pursuant to the ground lease, the Company has an option, exercisable at five-year intervals with the next
option in May 2005, to purchase the land at fair market value. The Company’s leasehold interest in the property
is subject to a lien to secure borrowings under the Revolving Facility.

Wild Wild West Lease

The Company exercised its option to purchase the 19-acre parcel of land on which Wild Wild West is located in
2003. Pursuant to the lease, the purchase will take place in July 2005 for approximately $36 million. No amounts
related to this purchase option have been recorded on the Company's consolidated balance sheets at December
31, 2004 and 2003. The Company currently leases this land for approximately $2.9 million per year.

Operating Leases

The Company leases several parcels of land, buildings and equipment used in its operations. Leases on various
parcels ranging from 2.5 acres to 47 acres have terms expiring between June 2005 and August 2103. Future
minimum lease payments required under these operating leases and other noncancelable operating leases are
as follows (amounts in thousands):

Years ending December 31,
2005 $ 11,199
2008 9,058
2007 8,948
2008 8,855
2009 8,841
Thereafter 449,719
Total $ 496,620

Rent expense totaled approximately $14.9 milion, $13.6 million and $12.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Green Valley Ranch Station

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company began a $125 million expansion at Green Valley Ranch Station.

The expansion includes hote! rooms, additional meeting space and an expanded spa facility. Construction of the
hotel rooms and additional meeting space was completed in December 2004, Construction of the spa facility is
expecied to be completed in the first quarter of 2005. In connection with the expansion, Green Valley Ranch Station
purchased the lease from the spa operator during 2004. Green Valley Ranch Station also terminated the lease of

a restaurant at the property and paid the tenant an agreed upon sum during 2004. As a result, the Company has
recorded a reduction in earnings from joint ventures of approximately $3.6 million as of December 31, 2004, which
represents its 50% share of the total loss. In accordance with the terms of the current foan, a completion guaranty
is required to complete the expansion. The completion guaranty is a joint obligation of both partners.




The Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria

The Company has entered into Development and Management Agreements with the Federated Indians of the
Graton Rancheria (the “FIGR"), a federally recognized Nat? ve American tribe. Pursuant to those agreements, the
Company will agsist the FIGR in developing and operating d gammg and entertainment project to be located in
Sonoma County, California. The FIGR selected the Company to assist it in designing, developing and financing
the project and, upon opening, the Company will manage the facility on behalf of the FIGR. The Management
Agreement has a term of seven years from the opening of the facility and the Company will receive a management
fee equal to 22% of the facility’s net income. The Company WI” also receive a development fee equal to 2% of the
cost of the project upon the opening of the facility. !

In ' August 2003, the Company entered into an option to pufdhase 360 acres of land just west of the Rohnert Park
city limits in Sonoma County, California. The proposed site df the project is bordered by Stony Point Road, Wilfred
Avenue and Rohnert Park Expressway, approximately one-h‘alf mile from Highway 101 and approximately 43 miles
from downtown San Francisco. In October 2003, the FIGR éntered into a Memorandum of Understanding with
the City of Rohnert Park. Development of the gaming and entertainment project is subject to certain governmental
and reguilatory approvals, including, but net limited to, negetiating a gaming compact with the State of California,
the United State Department of the Interior (“DOI") accepting}the land into trust on behalf of the FIGR and approval

of the Management Agreement by the National Indian Gaming Commission (“NIGC"). Prior to obtaining third-party 125
financing, the Company will contribute significant financial sdpport to the project. As of December 31, 2004, the Qi;:gf';m
Company had advanced approximately $22.4 million toward the development of this project, primarily to perform 2004
due diligence and secure real estate for the FIGR project, which is included in other assets, net on the Company's :2?;’;2;

consolidated balance sheets. Funds advanced by the Company are expected to be repaid with the proceeds
of the project financing or from the FIGR’s gaming revenues. In addition, the Company has agreed to pay
approximately $1.1.3 million of payments upon achieving certain milestones, which will not be reimbursed.

As of December 31 , 2004, approximately $2.0 million of thes}e payments had been made and were expensed in
development expense as incurred. The timing of this type of broject is difficult to predict and is dependent upon
the receipt of the necessary governmental and regulatory approvals. There can be no assurances when or if these
approvals will be obtained. !

Gun Lake Tribe

‘ On November 13, 2003, the Company agreed to purchase a 50% interest in MPM Enterprises, LLC, a Michigan
limited liability company (“MPM”). Concurrently with the Companys agreement to purchase that interest, MPM
and the Match-E-Be-Nash-She-Wish Band of Pottawatomi Indians, a federally recognized Native American tribe
commonly referred to as the Gun Lake Tribe (“Gun Lake"), efitered into amended Development and Management
Agreements, pursuant to which MPM will assist Gun Lake in dévefoping and operating a gaming and entertainment
‘pr‘o‘ject to be located in Allegan County, Michigan. The Company has agreed to pay $6.0 million for its 50%
interest in MPM, which is payable upon achieving certain miléstones and is not reimbursable. As of December 31,
2004, approximately $2.0 million of these payments had been: made and were expensed in development expense
as incurred. An additional $12.0 million in total may be paid by the Company in years six and seven of the
amended Management Agreement, subject to certain contingéncies. Under the terms of the amended Development
Agreement, the Company has agreed to arrange financing for the ongoing development costs and construction
of the project. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had advanced approximately $20.2 million toward the
development of this project, primarily to secure real estate fonthe project, which is included in other assets, net
on the Company's consolidated balance sheets. Funds advanced by the Company are expected to be repaid
from the proceeds of the project financing or from Gun Lake's gaming revenues. The amended Management
Agreement has a term of seven years from the opening of the facility and provides for a management fee of

30% of the project’s net income to be paid to MPM. Pursuant to the terms of the MPM Operating Agreement,
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the Company’s portion of the management fee is 50% of the first $24 million of management fees earned, 83%
of the next $24 million of management fees and 93% of any management fees in excess of $48 million.

The proposed project will be located on approximately 145 acres on Highway 131 near 129th Avenue,
approximately 28 miles north of Kalamazoo, Michigan. As currently contemplated, the project will include up

to 2,600 slot machines, 75 table games, a buffet and specialty restaurants. Construction of the project
includes the conversion of an existing 192,000 square-foot building into the casino and entertainment facility.
Development of the gaming and entertainment project and operation of Class Il gaming is subject to certain
governmental and regulatory approvals, including, but not limited to, the signing of a gaming compact by

the Governor of the State of Michigan, the DOI accepting the land into trust on behalf of Gun Lake and approval
of the Management Agreement by the NIGC. On February 27, 2004, the DOl issued a Finding Of No Significant
Impact with respect to the propdsed project. Prior to obtaining third-party financing, the Company will
contribute significant financial support to the project. The timing of this type of project is difficult to predict

and is dependent upon the receipt of the necessary gonernmental and regulatory approvals. There can be

no assurances when or if these approvals will be obtained.

Mechoopda Indian Tribe

The Company has entered into Development and Management Agreements with the Mechoopda Indian Tribe
of Chico Rancheria, California {the “MITCR”), a federally recognized Native American tribe. Pursuant to those
agreements, the Company will assist the MITCR in developing and operating a gaming and entertainment facility
to be located on approximately 850 acres in Butte County, California, at the intersection of State Route 149
and Highway 99, approximately 10 miles southeast of Chico, California and 80 miles north of Sacramento,
California. Under the terms of the Development Agreement, the Company has agreed to arrange the financing
for the ongoing development costs and construction of the facility. Funds advanced by the Company are
expected to be repaid from the proceeds of the facility financing or from the MITCR's gaming revenues.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had advanced approximately $5.8 million toward the development

of this project, primarily to secure real estate for future development, which is included in other assets, net

on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets. In addition, the Company has agreed to pay approximatety
$2.2 million of payments upon achieving certain milestones, which will not be reimbursed. As of December 31,
2004, $50,000 of these payments had been made and were expensed in development expense as incurred.
The Management Agreement has a term of seven years from the opening of the facility and provides for a
management fee of 24% of the facility’s net income. As currently contemplated, the facility will include
approximately 700 slot machines, 12 table games and dining and entertainment amenities. Development of
the facility is subject to certain governmental and regulatory approvals, including, but not limited to, negotiating
a gaming compact with the State of California, the DO! accepting land into trust on behalf of the MITCR and
approval of the Management Agreement by the NIGC. Prior to obtaining third-party financing, the Cempany will
contribute significant financial support to the project. The timing of this type of project is difficult to predict and
is dependent upon the receipt of the necessary gonernmental and regulatory approvals. There can be no
assurances when or if these approvals will be obtained.

North Fork Rancheria of Mono Indian Tribe

The Company has entered into Development and Management Agreaments with the North Fork Rancheria
of Mono [ndians ({the “Mono”), a federally recognized Native American tribe located near Fresno, California.
Pursuant to those agreements, the Company will assist the Mono in developing and operating a gaming and
entertainment facility to be located in Madera County, California. The Company has secured for the benefit of
the Mono two parcels of land iocated on Highway 99 north of the city of Madera. Under the terms of the




Development Agreement, the Company has agreed to arrange the financing for the ongoing development costs
‘ and construction of the facility. Funds advanced by the Gompany are expected to be repaid from the proceeds

of the praject financing or from the Mono’s gaming reveriues. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had

édvanced approximately $1.5 million toward the develo;:’fnent of this project, primarily to secure real estate for

future development, which is inctuded in other assets, nét on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

In addition, the Company has agreed to pay approximately $1.3 million of payments upon achieving certain

milestones, which will not be reimbursed. As of December 31, 2004, none of these payments had been made.

The Maﬁagement Agreement has a term of seven years from the opening of the facility and provides for a

management fee of 24% of the facility's net income. As currently contemplated, the facility will include

approximately 2,000 slot machines, 60 table games, dinihg, hote! and entertainment amenities. Development

of the gaming and entertainment project is subject to certain governmental and regulatory approvals, including,

but not limited to, negotiating a gaming compact with the: State of California, the DOl accepting the land into

trust on behalf of the Mono and approval of the Managerﬁent Agreement by the NIGC. Prior to obtaining

‘th]rd~party financing, the Company will contribute significant financial support to the project. The timing of this

type of project is difficult to predict and is dependent upon the receipt of the necessary gonernmental and

regulatory approvals. There can be no assurances when or if these approvals will be obtained.
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Cash Transaction Reporting Violations :

In April 2003, the Company became aware of violations of Gertain gaming regulations regarding the reporting of
certain cash transactions. The Company self-reported these violations to the Nevada State Gaming Control Board.
The Company, along with the Nevada State Gaming Control Board, has investigated the violations. Cn September 24,
2004, the Nevada Gaming Commission approved the settiement agreement in which we paid approximately
$2.4 miliion in fines and investigative costs to the State of N)evada. The Company has hired additional staff at each
of its properties and has increased the level of internal audit review to prevent this type of violation in the future.

12. STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY

Common Stock ‘
The Company is authorized to issug up to 135 million shares of its common stock, $0.01 par value per share,
77,298,227 shares of which were issued and 10,185,343 shé(es of which were held in treasury as of December 31,
2004. Each holder of the commaon stock is entitied to one YOte for each share held of record on each matter
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Holders of the common stock have no cumulative voting, conversion,
redemption or preemptive rights or other rights to subscribe for additional shares other than pursuant to the
Rights Plan described below. Subject to any preferences that may be granted to the holders of the Company’s
preferred stock, each holder of common stock is entitled to receive ratably, such dividends as may be declared
by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available therefore, as well as any distributions to the stockholders
and, in the event of liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, is entitled to share ratably in all assets
" of the Company remaining after payment of liabilities.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.125 per share to
shareholders of record on February 12, 2004, $0.175 per share to shareholders of record on May 14, 2004 and
August 13, 2004 and $0.21 per share to shareholders of repord on November 12, 2004. The total amount paid in
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dividends for 2004 was $44.3 miflion. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company paid a quarterly
cash dividend of $0.125 per share to shareholders of record on August 14, 2003 and November 13, 2003 for a
total of $14.9 million.

Preferred Stock

The Comipany is authorized to issue up to 5 million shares of its preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share of
which none were issued. The Board of Directors, without further action by the holders of common stock, may
issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series and may fix or alter the rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions, including the voting rights, redemption provisions (including sinking fund provisicns), dividend rights,
dividend rates, liquidation rates, liquidation preferences, conversion rights and the description and number of
shares constituting any wholly unissued series of preferred stock. Except as described above, the Board of
Directors, without further stockholder approval, may issue shares of preferred stock with rights that could
adversely affect the rights of the holders of common stock. The issuance of shares of preferred stock under
certain circumstances could have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of control of the Company or
other corperate action.

Treasury Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company repurchased approximately 64,000 shares of its
common stock for approximately $3.2 million. The Company is authorized to repurchase up to approximately
19.5 million shares of its common stock. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had acquired approximately
10.2 million shares at a cost of approximately $137.7 million.

Other Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income”, requires companies to disclose other comprehensive
income and the components of such income. Comprehensive income is the total of net income and all other
non-stockholder changes in equity. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the Company
recorded its 50% interest in the mark-to-market valuation of the interest rate swaps at Green Valley Ranch
Station as other comprehensive income (loss). Comprehensive income was computed as follows

{amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Net income $ 66350 $ 44343 $ 17882
Mark-to-market valuation of interest rate swaps, net of tax 723 361 {1,695)

Comprehensive income $ 67073 § 44704 3 16,237




Rights Plan

On Getober 6, 1997, the Company declared a dividend of one preferred share purchase right (a "Right”) for
each outstanding share of common stock. The dividend was pa}id on October 21, 1997, Each Right entitles

the registered holder to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock,
par value $0.07 per share ("Preferred Shares”) of the Company at a price of $40.00 per one one-hundredth of 2
Preferred Share, subject to adjustment. The Rights are not exercisable untit the earlier of 10 days following a
public announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons have acquired beneficial
ownership of 16% or more of the outstanding common stock ("Acquiring Person”) or 10 business days {or such
later date as may be determined by action of the Board of Directors prior to such time as any perscn or group
of affiliated persons becomes an Acquiring Person) following the commencement of, or announcement of an
intention to make, a tender offer or exchange offer, the consummation of which would resuilt in the beneficial
ownership by a person or group of 15% or more of the outstand‘ing common stock.

The Rights will expire on October 21, 2007, Acquiring Persons do not have the same rights to receive common
stock as other holders upon exercise of the Rights. Because of the nature of the Preferred Shares’ dividend,
liquidation and voting rights, the value of one one-hundredth interest in a Preferred Share purchasable upon
exercise of each Right should approximate the value of one comfnon share. in the event that any person or group
of affiliated or asscciated persons becomes an Acquiring Person, the proper provisions will be made so that each
holder of a Right, other than Rights beneficially owned by the Acfduw’ring Person (which will thereafter become
void), will thereafter have the right to receive upon exercise that number of shares of common stock having a
market value of two times the exercise price of the Right. In the évent that the Company is acquired in a merger
orother business combination transaction or 50% or more of its;consolidated assets or earning power are sold
after a person or group has become an Acguiring Person, propef provision wilt be made so that each holder

of a Right will thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise thereof, that number of shares of common stock
of the acquiring company, which at the time of such transaction will have a market value of two times the exercise
price of the Right. Because of the characteristics of the Rights in(‘ connection with & person or group of affiiated
or associated persons becoming an Acquiring Person, the Rights may have the effect of making an acquisition of
the Company more difficult and may discourage such an acquisiifion.

13. BENEFIT PLANS

Stock Compensation Programs ‘

The Company has adopted a Stock Compensation Program which includes (i) an Incentive Stock Option Plan for
the grant of incentive stock options, (i) a Compensatory Stock Option Plan providing for the grart of nongualified
stock options, {iil) 2 Restricted Shares Plan providing for the grant“of restricted shares of common stock and

{iv) @ Nonemployee Director Stock Option Plan, providing for the Qi’aﬂt of nongualified stock options. The Company
has also‘adopted the 1999 Stock Compensation Program (combiﬁed with the Stock Compensation Program
“the Programs")J which includes (i) the 1899 Compensatory StockvifOpt&on Plan providing for the majority of the
grants of nonqualified stock options to employees who are not officers or directors of the Company and (i) the
1999 Share Plan which grants shares of the Company’s common stock to employees based on their length of
service with the Company and restricted shares of common stock are granted. Officers, key employees, directors
(whether employee or nen-employee) and independent contractors or consultants of the Company and its
subsidiaries are eligible to participate in the Programs. However, oﬁly employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are eligible to receive incentive stock options. i
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A maximum of 18,710,500 shares of commaon stock has been reserved for issuance under the Programs.
Options are granted at the current market price at the date of grant. The plan provides for a variety of vesting
schedules, including immediate, 20% per year for five years, 10% per year for 10 years, and a cliff vest at the
vesting date, to be determined at the time of grant. Generally, all options expire 10 years from the date (?f grant.
The Programs will terminate 10 years from the date of adoption or extension, uniess terminated earlier by the
Board of Directors, and no options or restricted shares may be granted under the Programs after such date.
Summarized information for the Programs is as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average avergge

exercise exercise exercise

Options price Options price Options price

Outstanding at beginning of the year 9,619,816 $ 11.25 13,533,544 $ 10.59 14,637,783  $10.22

130 Granted - - 169,500 $ 19.98 1,649,500 $13.70

Exercised (5,203,316) $ 1057 (3.838,986) $ 8863 (1,079,667) $ 8.46

Canceled (463,800) $ 1272 (244,242) $ 1315 (1,674,072) $13.07

Outstanding at end of the year 3,952,700 $ 11.96 9,619,816 $ 11.25 13,533,544  $10.59

Exercisable at end of year 1,972,850 $ 1182 5,383,469 $ 10.36 7,133,595 $§ 9.05
Options available for grant 456,876 1,182,455 1,497,825

The following table summarizes information about the options cutstanding at December 31, 2004:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Number average Weighted Number Weighted
Range of outstanding at remaining average exercisable at average
exercise December 31, contractual exercise December 31, exercise
prices 2004 iife price 2004 price
$ 329 -3 800 247,400 4.10 5.72 205,600 5.32

3 $

§ 801 - $ 1600 3,486,450 6.40 $ 11.98 1,707,500 $ 1239

$ 16.01 - $ 24.00 196,350 7.50 $ 17.62 67,250 $ 17.31

$ 2401 - 3 3185 22,500 8.70 8 29.51 2,500 $ 81.23
$ 3

3,952,700 6.32 11.96 1,872,850 11.82




'Restricted stock grants of 1,420,413, 383,468, and 50,000 shares were issued under the Programs during the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2008 and 2002, respe;Ctively. The effect of these grants is to increase the
issued and outstanding shares of the Company's common stock and decrease the number of shares available
for grant in the plan. Deferred compensation is recorded fpr the restricted stock grants equal to the market
value of the Company’s common stock on the date of graht. The deferred compensation is amortized over the
period the restricted stock vests and is recorded as comﬁensation expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. i

The fair value on the grant date of the restricted shares and the amount of compensation expense recognized in
connection with the restricted shares is as follows (amounis in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Fair value on grant date $ 65,924 $ 11,472 $ 895
Compensation expense ! 9,676 3,201 2,973 131
‘ StaTioN
. Casixos, Inc.
i 2004
401(k) Plan i ANNUAL
The Company has a defined contribution 401(k) plan, which covers all employees who mest certain age REPORT

and length of service requirements and allows an employer contribution up to 50% of the first 4% of each
pa{'ticipating smployse’'s compensation. Plan participants cén elect to defer before tax compensation
through payroll deductions. These deferrals are regulated uhder Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
The Company’s matching contribution was approximately SQ.O million, $1.8 milion and $1.7 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectix{ély,

14. EXEcUTIVE COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company has employment agreements with certain of ifS executive officers. These contracts provide for,
among other things, an annual base salary, supplemental long-term disability and supplemental life insurance
benefits in excess of the Company’s normal coverage for embioyees‘ In addition, the Company has adopted

a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for its Chief Executive Officer and President and a Supplemental
Management Retirement Plan for certain key executives as sélected by the Governance and Compensation
Corhmlttee of the Company’s Board of Directors. Other executive plans include a Deferred Compensation Plan
and a Long-Term Stay-On Performance Incentive Plan.
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15. INcoME TAXES

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. The provision for income taxes for financial reporting
purposes consists of the following {amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Income tax provision from continuing cperations $ (38.87¢) & (23834 $ (18,508)
- - 7,170

(38,879) 3 (23,834) $ (11,338

Tax benefit from change in accounting principle

Total income taxes 3

The provision for income taxes attributable to net income consists of the following (amounts in thousands):

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002

Current $ (10,187) $ (27,416) $  (2,852)
Deferred (28,692} 3,682 (15,656)
Total income taxes $ (38,879) $  (23,834) $ (18,508)

The income tax provision differs from that computed at the federal statutory corporate tax rate as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Lobbying and political 0.4 0.2 Q.7
Fines & penalties 0.6 - -
Meals and entertainment 0.1 0.1 0.6
Credits earned, net 0.6) 0.9 (1.7
Nondeductible officers compensation 2.4 2.6 2.8
Reduction in liabifity based an conclusion of an IRS examination (1.1 2.2) -
Other, net ) 0.1 0.2 1.3
36.9% 35.0% 38.7%

Effective Tax Rate




The tax effects of significant temporary differences representing net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as
follows {amounts in thousands): i

December 31,
2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:

Accrued vacation, bonuses and group insurance ; 3 4,986 $ 3,880
Preopening and other costs, net of amortization 4,991 4,434
Net operating loss carryover B 53,256 -
Accrued benefits  , 13,739 11,614
FICA credits 2,846 1,179
Minimum tax credit carryover i 20,838 19,999
Other deferred tax assets i 5,294 18,253
TOTAL DEPERRED TAX ASSETS ! $ 105950 § 59,359

Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and other 1 $ (10,4863) S (5,329)
‘ Temporary differences related to property and equipment : (110,309) (100,027)
Amortization 3 5,485) (1,150)
Other ! - {1.334)
TOTAL DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES $ (126,257) $ (107,840)
Net : $ (20,307) $ (48,481)

The excess of the tentative minimum tax over the regular fedefél income tax is a tax credit, which can be carried
forward indefinitely to reduce future regular federal income tax liabilities. The Company did not record a valuation

allowance at December 31, 2004 or 2003 relating to recorded tax benefits because all benefits are more likely
than not to be realized:

During 2004 and 2003, the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") completed their audits through and including
December 31, 2002. Based on the favorable conclusion of their audits, the Company recorded a reduction in

its tax contingency reserve of approximately $1.1 million and $1 .5 million in the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively. :

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has a tax net operati‘ng loss carryover of approximately $152 million

that -expires in 2024, SFAS No. 109 requires that the tax benefit of a net operating 10ss be recorded as an asset.

Management believes that the realization of this deferred tax aféset is more likely than not based on expectations
. of future taxable income.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company has a capital loss cai?ryover of approximately $85 thousand that is
available to offset capital gains. SFAS No. 108 requires that the tax benefit of a capital loss be recorded as an
asset. Management believes that the realization of this deferrea tax asset is more likely than not based on the
characterization of taxable income.
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16. LEGAL MATTERS

The Company and its subsidiaries are defendants in various lawsuits relating to routine matters incidental to their
business. As with all litigation, no assurance can be provided as to the outcome of the following matters and
litigation inherently involves significant costs. Following is a summary of key litigation impacting the Company.

Poulos/Ahearn Litigation

On April 26, 1994, a suit seeking status as a class action lawsuit was filed by plaintiff, William H. Poulos, et al.,
as class representative, in the United States District Court for the Middle District of Florida (the “Florida District
Court"), naming 41 manufacturers, distributors and casino operators of video poker and electronic slot machines,
including Station Casinos. On May 10, 1984, a lawsuit alleging substantially identical claims was fited by another
plaintiff, William Ahearn, et al., as class representative, in the Florida District Court against 48 manufacturers,
distributors and casino operators of video poker and electronic slot machines, including the Company and most
of the other major hotel/casino companies. The lawsuits allege that the defendants have engaged in a course

of fraudulent and misleading conduct intended to induce persons to play such games based on a false belief
concerning how the gaming machines operate, as well as the extent to which there is an opportunity to win.

The two lawsuits have been consolidated into a single action, and have been transferred to the United States
District Court for the District of Nevada (the “Nevada District Court”). On September 26, 1995, a lawsuit alleging
substantially identical claims was filed by plaintiff, Larry Schreier, et al., as class representative, in the Nevada
District Court, naming 45 manufacturers, distributors, and casino operators of video poker and electronic slot
machines, including the Company. Motions to dismiss the Poulos/Ahearn and Schreier cases were filed by
defendants. On April 17, 1996, the Poulos/Ahearn lawsuits were dismissed, but plaintiffs were given leave to file
Amended Complaints on or before May 31, 1996. On May 31, 19986, an Amended Complaint was filed, naming
William H. Poulos, et al., as plaintiff. Defendants filed a motion to dismiss. On August 15, 1996, the Schreier
lawsuit was dismissed with leave to amend. On September 27, 1996, Schreier filed an Amended Complaint.
Defendants filed motions to dismiss the Amended Complaint. In December 19986, the Nevada District Court
consolidated the Poulos/Ahearn, the Schreier, and a third case not involving the Company and ordered all
pending motions be deemed withdrawn without prejudice, including Defendants’ Motions to Dismiss the
Amended Compilaints. The plaintiffs filed a Consolidated Amended Complaint on February 13, 1997. On or
about December 18, 1997, the Nevada District Court issued formal opinions granting in part and denying in part
the defendants’ motion to dismiss. In so doing, the Nevada District Court ordered plaintiffs to file an amended
complaint in accordance with the Court’s orders in January of 1998. Accordingly, plaintiffs amended their
complaint and filed it with the Nevada District Court in February 1998, The Company and all other defendants
continue to deny the allegations contained in the amended complaint filed on behalf of plaintiffs. The plaintiffs
are seeking compensatory, special, consequential, incidental, and punitive damages in unspecified amounts.

On June 25, 2002, the Nevada District Court denied plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. On July 11, 2002,
plaintiffs filed a petition for permission to appeal such class certification ruling with the United States Court of
Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. On August 15, 2002, the Ninth Circuit granted the plaintiffs’ petition for permission
to appeal such class certification ruling. On January 15, 2004, the Court of Appeals heard oral argument on this
matter. On August 10, 2004, the Ninth Circuit affirmed the District Court’s order denying the plaintiff's motion for
class certification. Accordingly, the matter is scheduled to move forward on behalf of the three named plaintiffs
orly. While no assurances can be made with respect to any litigation, the Company believes that the plaintiffs’
claims are without merit and does not expect that the lawsuits will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position or results of cperations.




Harrah's Litigation ‘

On July 13, 2001, the Company and five of its major operating subsidiaries were named as defendants in a lawsuit
brought by Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. and Harrah'’s Operafing Company, Inc. in the United States District Court,
District of Nevada (CV-5-01-0825-PMP-RJJ). The plaintiffs énege that the Company and its subsidiaries are liable
for, unspecified actual and punitive damages, and they seek injunctive and other relief, based on allegations that
the Compémy’s “Boarding Pass Rewards Program” infringes. on various patents held by the plaintiffs.

On October 4, 2001, the Company and the subsidiaries filed their answer and counterclaim seeking declaratory
judgment that Harrah's patents (1) are not infringed by the Company’s and the subsidiaries’ actions, (2) are invalid
under federal patent law and (3) are rendered unenforceablevdue to Harrah's inequitable conduct. On March 27,
2002, Harrah's filed an amended complaint, which added ani additional defendant, Green Valley Ranch Gaming,

" LLG; whichis an affiliate of the Company. On April 22, 2002;{the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliate filed
their amended answer and counterclaim denying infringemeﬁt by Green Valley Ranch Gaming, LLC, and alleging
Harrah’'s commitied further acts of inequitable conduct.

On January 17, 2003, the Company filed mations for summa‘fy judgment or partial summary judgment on several
issues: (1) a Motion for Summary Judgment of Patent Unenforceability Due To Inequitable Conduct, (2) a Motion

for Summary Judgrment of Patent Invalidity Under 35 U.S.C. ss 102 and 103 (lack of novelty and obviousness), 135

3 a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment of Patent Invaliditj‘/‘ Under 35 U.S.C. s 112 {indefiniteness, tack of Cémsr;m‘
written description and failure to disclose best mode), (4) a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment of 2004
Non-infringement of U.S. Patent No. 6,008,013, and (5} & Motién for Partial Summary Judgment of Non-infringement ;;:S er

-of U.S. Patent No. 6,183,362. That samme day, Harrah'’s filed nﬁbtions for partial summary judgment on several
issues: (1) a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment of lnfringen"lent of Claims 15-18 of U.S. Patent No. 5,761,647,
(2) a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment of Infringement of Claims 1-2 and 49 of U.S. Patent No. 5,003,013,
(3) a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Defendants’ Invalidity Defenses, and (4) a Motion for Partial
Summary Judgment That Certain Third Party Systems Are No{iPrior Art. During February and March of 2003, the
parties filed oppositions, reply briefs and various motions to stfike in response to the summary judgment motions.

On March 23, 2004, the District Court heard oral argurnent on certain of the summary judgment motions and
motions to strike. On May 19, 2004, the District Court granted the Company’s motion for summary judgment
on Harrah's claims that the Company had infringed upon U.S.:Patents Nos. 5,761,847 and 6,183,362, held
by Harrah's relating to its customer rewards and tracking program. In granting that motion, the District Court
ruled that such patents are invalid as a matter of law due to indefiniteness and lack of enabling disclosure of
the claimed subject matter. A substantial portion of the patent}infringemem claim brought by Harrah's regarding
U.S. Patent No. 6,003,013 (the “013 Patent”) was also dismfss‘,\ed as a result of that summary judgment ruling.
On August 23, 2004, the District Court entered final judgment and declared invalid all claims of U.S. Patent
Nos. 5,761,647 and 6,183,362, and all but three claims of the'1013 Patent. The final judgment also dismissed
with prajudice all claims of the ‘013 Patent that were not declated invalid, and dismissed without prejudice the
Company's counterclaims for declaratory judgment of noninfringement and invalidity.

On Séptember 13, 2004, Harrah's filed a Notice of Appeal with‘.ihe United States Court of Appeals for the
Federal Circuit. On October 14, 2004, the Company filed a Notice of Cross Appeal with the Federal Circuit.
On February 17, 2005, Harrah’s filed its appeliate brief with the Federal Circuit. While no assurances can be
made with respect to any litigation, the Company believes that the plaintifis’ claims are without merit and does
not e)épect that the lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on its financial position or resuits of operations.

&
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Plattner Litigation

On May 2, 2003, the Company and one of its operating subsidiaries, Palace Station Hotel & Casino, Inc.
(“Palace Station”), were named as defendants in a lawsuit seeking status as a class action brought by
Dov Plattner in the Superior Court of Los Angeles County, California {Case No. CB295056).

The lawsuit seeks to recover for alleged breach of contract, fraud, negligent misrepresentation, breach of
cavenant of good faith and fair dealing, promissory fraud, unjust enrichment and violations of sections 17200
and 17500, et. seq. of the California Business and Professions Code, all in connection with energy and
telephone surchargse fees imposed on Palace Station hotel guests. The plaintiff is requesting unspecified
actual and punitive damages, as well as injunctive and other refief.

On November 10, 2003, the defendants filed a response to the complaint denying all liability. On June 18, 2004,
the parties entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release (the "Proposed Settlement”). Pursuant to the
Proposed Settlement and subject to Superior Court approval, the parties have agreed that the Company wil.

(i) issue two personalized coupons to each Settlement Class Member (as defined in the Proposed Settlement),
one for $3.00 and one for $2.50, with each coupon to be good toward a discount of a quoted room rate for a
single night’s stay at any of the Station Hotels (as defined in the Proposed Settlement), and (i) pay the plaintiff's
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses in exchange for the plaintif dismissing the lawsuit (including all claims
held by the members of the settlement class and the general public) with prejudice. The Proposed Settlement
stipulates that the Company denies any liability with respect to the plaintiff's claims. On October 22, 2004, the
Superior Court approved the Proposed Settlement and dismissed the lawsuit with prejudice, except for the
claims of eight class members that opted out of the settlement class.

Castillo Litigation

On May 14, 2003, the Company (as a nominal defendant only} and all of its executive officers and directors
were named as defendants in a derivative action lawsuit, which also seeks status as a class action, brought
by Bernard Castilio in the District Court of Clark County, Nevada (Case No. A467663).

The lawsuit alleges that (1) the director defendants breached their fiduciary duties by failing to make certain
disclosures in the Company's 2002 Proxy Statement regarding the sale by the Company of its subsidiary,
Southwest Gaming Services, Inc. (“SGSI"), and regarding a proposal seeking shareholder approval of an
amendment to the Company’s stock option pian; (2} the director defendants breached their fiduciary duties
in approving the sale of SGSI and in recommending approval of the option plan amendment; and (3) the
purchasers of SGSI and the recipients of certain benefits made possible by the option plan amendment were
unjustly enriched. The plaintiff is requesting unspecified actual damages, as well as injunctive and other relief.

Cn July 21, 2003, the defendants filed a motion to dismiss or, in the alternative, motion to stay all of the plaintiff's
claims. On October 24, 2003, the District Court granted the motion to stay all of plaintiff's claims pending the
consideration of such claims by a special litigation committee to be formed by the Company in accordance with
the Court’s order granting such motion. On November 19, 2003, the defendants filed their first amended answer
to the complaint. On February 27, 2004, the District Court entered another order extending the stay for another
120 days pending the special litigation committee investigation.

On July 8, 2004, the parties entered into a Stipulation of Settlement (the “Proposed Settlement”). Pursuant to the
Proposed Settlement and subject to District Court approval, the parties have agreed that the Company will

{i) adopt new language in its Corporate Governance Guidelines, which specifically relates to “interested director
transactions,” and (i} pay the plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees and expenses in exchange for the plaintiff dismissing the




lawsuit (including all claims held by the Company and the m“embers of the certified class), with prejudice.

The Propesed Settlement stipulates that the Company denies any liability with respect to the plaintiff's claims.
©On Septerriber 13, 2004, the District Court approved the Proposed Settlement and dismissed the lawsuit
with prejudice.

i

17. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Income (loss) Net
: before income Dituted
incone (loss) earnings
taxes and applicable tloss)
change in fo per
Net | Operating accournting commaon common
(dmounts in thousands, except per share amounts) reveniies o income principle stock share
Year ended December 31, 2004 i
First quarter (a) $ 238,965 $ ¢ 63,651 $ (46,497) $ {29,758) $ (0.48)
Second quarter () 240,177 ¢ 62,328 45,328 29,010 0.43 137
Third quarter {c) 242,862 + 58,808 45,870 28,086 0.43 STATION
Fourth guarter {d) 264,738 i 72,468 80,728 38,012 0.55 Casinos, INc.
“ 2004
ANNUAL
REPORT
Year ended December 31, 2003
First quarter (e) $ 199,561 $ 40,550 $ 19,838 $ 12,561 $ o2
Second guarter {f) 210,005 " 48,002 32,743 20,628 0.33
Third quarter {g) 218,670 43,880 31,431 19,802 0.32
Fourth quarter'(h) 229,853 2,639 (15,935) (8,648) 0.14)
{a) Includes development axpense of approximately $4.0 milion and loss on early retirement of debt of apgroximately $93.3 millio
(b) Includes development expense of approximately $2.2 milion and preopenmg expense of approximately $0.3 million.
{©) Includes development expense of approximately $2.1 million and p(eopsning expense of approximately $0.3 million.
{d) iné{udes development expenses of approximately $2.4 million and ;S%eopening expense of approximately $0.3 million,
{e) Includes an.impairment ioss of approximately $1.4 miflion prrmaruy rélated 10 the write-off of an investment in the development
of a new siot product {see Nots 7). ;
) Ircludes development fegs of approximately $3.6 milion from Thunder Valley.
(@) Inciudes development fees of approximatety $0.8 million from Thunder Valigy. Also includes development expenses of
approximataly $2.9 million.
() Includes development fees of approximately $0.2 million from Thunder Valisy, development expenses of approximately

$1.4 million, a goodwill impairment loss of approximately $17.5 million at Fiesta Rancho {see Goodwill and Other intangibles
in Note 1) and a litigation settlement of $38.0 million. :
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting. The Company’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to
the Company's management and board of directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published
financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations, including the possibility of
human error and the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal controls can
provide only reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement preparation. Further because of changes
in conditions, the effectiveness of internal controls may vary over time.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ) in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on our
assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting

is effective based on those criteria.

The Company’s independent auditors have issued an audit report on cur assessment of the company’s internal
control over financial reporting. This report appears on page 140.




REpPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of the Station Casincs, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consclidated balance éheets of Station Casinos, Inc. and its subsidiaries

‘ (thé “Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the two yeérs in the period ended December 31, 2004. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s. fnanagement. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

Wé conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and §eﬁorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant esfimates made by management, as well as evaluating
thé overall financial statement presentation. We believe that;)our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated

financial position of the Company at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the consolidated resuits of their
‘op‘erations and their cash flows for each of the two years inlithe period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity
" with accounting principles generally accepted in the United ‘States.

We alsc have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectivenass of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December

31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control —j{ntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 18, 2005 expressed an
unqgualified opinion thereon.

. fs/Ernst & Young LLP
Las Vegas, Nevada "1
February 18, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Station Casinos, Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Controf Over Financial Reporting (see page 138), that Station Casinos Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company”)
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in
our opinion, the Company maihtained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2004 of the Company and our report dated February 18, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/Ernst & Young LLP
Las Vegas, Nevada
February 18, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTEREDIPUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Station Casinos, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows
of Station Casinos, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) (a Nevada corporation) for the year ended December 31,
2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Cdmpany‘s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our éudit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a

test bééis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimatéé made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our aud:ii provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the results of
operations and:cash flows of Station Casinos, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2002

in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 141
STATION
. . i . i . . Casinos, Inc.
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements;iin 2002, the Company changed its methed of 2004
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ;;25{::

No. 142, “Goodwill and Other intangibles,” and recorded a cuijJIative effect of a change in accounting principle
in the first quarter of 2002. “

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Las Vegas, Nevada
January 29, 2003
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S CoMMON EQuiTy
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “STN”. The following table sets forth, for the
periods indicated, the high and low sale price per share of our common stock as reported on the New York Stock Exchange.

High Low

Year Ending December 31, 2004
First Quarter $ 4417 $ 30.04
Second Quarter 50.94 41.35
Third Quarter . 49.73 40.57
Fourth Quarter 59.12 46,15

Year Ending December 31, 2003
First Quarter $ 21.67 $ 16.55
Second Quarter 25.87 2049
Third Quarter 32.96 24.85
Fourth Quarter 33.50 27.80

142

As of February 28, 2005, there were 551 holders of record of our common stock and the closing price of our
common stock was $60.94.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company paid a quarterly cash dividend of $0.125 per share to
shareholders of record on February 12, 2004, $0.175 per share to shareholders of record in May 14, 2004 and
August 13, 2004 and $0.21 per share to shareholders of record in November 12, 2004. The total amount paid in
dividends for 2004 was $44.3 million. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company paid a quarterly
cash dividend of $0.125 per share to shareholders of record on August 14, 2003 and November 13, 2003 for a
total of $14.9 million. The payment of dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
Restrictions imposed by our debt instruments and other agreements limit the payment of dividends

(see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuilts of Operations - Description

of Certain Indebtedness and Capital Stock”}.
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Annual Report on Form 10-K

The Annual Report on Form 10-K of
Station Casinos, Inc. filéd with the
Securities and Exchange Commission
may be obtained upon written request
and without charge. Requests should
be directed to Glenn C.iChrigtenson,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer,
at the corporate mailing address.

Annual Meeting -

The Annual Meeting of Steckholders
will be held at 10:00 AM Pacific
Daylight Time, on May 18, 2005, at
Green Valley Ranch Station, 2300
Paseo Verde Parkway, Henderson,
Nevada 88052. March 24, 2005 is
the recard date for determining the
stockhaldars entitied to notice of
and to vote at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders. i

Common Stock ,

The Company's common stock
trades on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbot “STN".

Other Publicly Traded Securities
Over-the-Counter

Station Casinos, Inc.
97/:% Senior Subordinated Notes
Due July 1, 2010 L

Station Casinos, Inc.
B8'/2% Senior Subordinated Notes
Due February 1, 2014

Station Casinos, Inc.
67/s% Senior Subordinated Notes
Due March 1, 2018 i

Station Casinos, Inc.
83%/s% Senior Notes
Due February 15,2008

.

Station Casinos, inc.
6% Senior Notes
Due April 1, 2012

Agent and Trustees

Weils Fargo Shareowner Services
161 North Concord Exchange
South Saint Paul, Minnesota 55075

Wachovia Bank N.A.

123 South Broad Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19108
Trustee for the 97/:%

Senior Subordinated Notes

The Bank of New York

5 Penn Plaza

New York, New York 10001
Trustee for the 8 %% Senior Notes

Law Debenture Trust

Company of New York

787 Third Avenue

New York, New York 10017
Trustee for the 6'/2% and 67/6%

. ) 1
Senior Subordinated Notes 43
and the 6% Senior Notes STATION
Casinos, INc,
2004
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Forward-Looking Statement

When used in this report and elsewhere by management from time to time, the words “believes”, “anticipates” and
“expects” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-laoking statements with respect to the financial
condition, results of operations and the business of Station Casinos, Inc. {the “Company”) and its subsidiaries including
the expansion, development and acquisition projects, legal proceedings and employee matters of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Certain important factors, including but not limited to, financial market risks, could cause the Company’s
actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the Company’s forward-looking statements. Further information
on potential factors which could affect the financial condition, resufts of operations and business of the Company and

its subsidiaries, including, without limitation, the ability to maintain existing management, integration of acquisitions,
competition within the gaming industry, the cyclical nature of the hotel business and gaming business, economic
conditions, development and construction risk, regulatory matters and litigation are included in the filings of the Company
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date thereof. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly release any
ravisions to such forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof.
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